Wiltshire Council

~———"-_ Where everybody matters

AGENDA

Meeting: Health and Wellbeing Board

Place: Kennet Room, County Hall, Trowbridge, BA14 8JN
Date: Thursday 23 May 2019

Time: 9.00 am

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Craig Player, of Democratic Services,
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 713191 or email
craig.player@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115.

This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

Membership:
Voting:

Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE - Co-Chair (Leader of Council)

Dr Richard Sandford-Hill - Co-Chair (Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group)

Dr Toby Davies (Chair of SARUM Clinical Commissioning Group)

Dr Andrew Girdher (Chair for North and East Wilts Clinical Commissioning Group)
Nikki Luffingham (NHS England)

Angus Macpherson (Police and Crime Commissioner)

Dr Catrinel Wright (North East Wiltshire Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group)
Cllr Laura Mayes (Cabinet Member for Children, Education and Skills)

Clir Gordon King (Opposition Group Representative)

Clir Jerry Wickham (Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care, Public Health and Public
Protection)

Non-Voting:

Clir Ben Anderson (Portfolio Holder for Public Health & Protection)

Nicola Hazle (Avon & Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership NHS Trust)

Dr Gareth Bryant (Wessex Local Medical Committee)

Tracy Daszkiewicz (Statutory Director of Public Health)

Terence Herbert (Corporate Director, children and education DCS)

Dr Carlton Brand (Corporate Director, adult care and public health DASS/ERO)
Tony Fox (South West Ambulance Service Trust SWAST)

Linda Prosser (Wiltshire CCG)

Page 1


http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/

Rob Jefferson (Healthwatch Wiltshire)

Kier Pritchard (Police Chief Constable)

Chief Executive or Chairman Salisbury Hospital FT (Salisbury Hospital Foundation
Trust)

Chief Executive or Chairman Bath RUH (Bath Royal United Hospital)

Chief Executive or Chairman Great Western Hospitals FT (Great Western Hospital FT)

Page 2



Recording and Broadcasting Information

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the
Council’'s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv. At the start of the meeting, the
Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and
sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council.

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of
those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes.

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in
relation to any such claims or liabilities.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here .

Parking

To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most
meetings will be held are as follows:

County Hall, Trowbridge
Bourne Hill, Salisbury
Monkton Park, Chippenham

County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer,
who will arrange for your stay to be extended.

Public Participation

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of
questions and statements for this meeting.

For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution.

The full constitution can be found at this link.

For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for
details

Page 3


http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=14031
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/parkingtransportandstreets/carparking/findacarpark.htm?area=Trowbridge
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s153103/Part04RulesofProcedure.pdf
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13386&path=0

AGENDA

Chairman's Welcome

The Chairman will welcome those present to the meeting.

Apologies for Absence

To receive any apologies or substitutions for the meeting.

Minutes (Pages 7 - 14)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 215t March 2019.

Declarations of Interest

To declare any personal or prejudicial interests or dispensations granted by the
Standards Committee.

Public Participation

The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public.

Statements

If you would like to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this
agenda, please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Up to 3
speakers are permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes each on any agenda item.
Please contact the officer named on the front of the agenda for any further
clarification.

uestions

To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the Council
received in accordance with the constitution.

Those wishing to ask questions are required to give notice of any such
questions in writing to the officer named on the front of this agenda no later than
5pm on 16 May 2019 in order to be guaranteed of a written response. In order to
receive a verbal response questions must be submitted no later than 5pm on 20
May 2019. Please contact the officer named on the front of this agenda for
further advice. Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman decides
that the matter is urgent.

Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website.

Page 4



10

11

Chairman's Announcements

To receive any announcements through the Chair.

Better Care Plan (Pages 15 - 88)

To receive a report on the latest performance information (including delayed
transfers of care), along with an update on the refresh of Wiltshire’s Better Care
Fund plan for 2019/20.

Responsible Officers: Linda Prosser, Carlton Brand
Report authors: Tony Marvell, James Corrigan, Jeremy Hooper

Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat (Pages 89 - 94)

To receive an update on numbers of s136 detentions and the latest performance
dashboard.

Responsible Officers: Linda Prosser, Carlton Brand, Kier Pritchard
Report authors: Lucy Baker, Sgt Mike Hughes

Multi-Agency Approach to Preventing and Tackling Serious Violence
(Pages 95 - 100)

To agree a proposed response to the government consultation on this subject as
well as provide an update on the existing work of the Community Safety
Partnership in this area.

Responsible Officers: Linda Prosser, Carlton Brand, Terence Herbert, Kier
Pritchard

Report author: Tracy Daszkiewicz

Learning Disability Update (Pages 101 - 106)

To receive an update on progress with transforming care for people with
learning disabilities including the new facilities at the Daisy.

Responsible Officers: Linda Prosser, Carlton Brand
Report authors: Lucy Baker, Claire Edgar

Air Quality Update (Pages 107 - 140)

To bring to the attention of the Board the updated Air Quality Strategy ahead of
its consideration by Cabinet.

Responsible Officers: Carlton Brand
Report author: John Carter

Page 5



12

13

14

15

Self-Neglect and Hoarding (Pages 141 - 144)

To update the board on new procedures in place for handling self-neglect and
on the functioning of the multi-agency hoarding protocol which has now been in
place for a year.

Responsible Officers: Linda Prosser, Carlton Brand, Kier Pritchard

Report authors: John Carter, Emma Townsend

Safe and Well

A presentation on the Fire and Rescue Service’s Safe and Well visits to the
most vulnerable in our communities and its work with partners to reduce

community risk and support people to live safe and independent lives for longer
in their homes.

Responsible officers: lan Jeary, Area Manager, Dorset and Wiltshire FRS
Urgent Items
Any other items of business which the Chairman agrees to consider as a matter

of urgency.

Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting will be held on Thursday 25" July 2019 at 9.00am.

Page 6



Wiltsrire Council

~————_ Where everybody matters

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING HELD ON 21
MARCH 2019 AT VENUE TO BE CONFIRMED.

Present:

Dr Richard Sandford-Hill (Co-Chair), Cllr Laura Mayes, Clir Gordon King, Cllir Ben Anderson,
Hazle, Tracy Daszkiewicz, Terence Herbert, Dr Carlton Brand, Linda Prosser, Kier Pritchard
and James Scott

Also Present:

Emma Leatherbarrow, Stacey Plumb, Glyn Moody and Andy Hyett.

17 Chairman's Welcome

The Chairman welcomed all to the meeting.

18 Membership Changes

The Chairman announced one changed to the membership of the Health and
Wellbeing Board as agreed at the last meeting of the Council:

Clir lan Thorn was replaced by Clir Gordon King.

19 Apologies for Absence

Apologies were received from Nerissa Vaughan, Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook
OBE and Dr Andrew Girdher.

Rob Jefferson was represented by Emma Leatherbarrow, lan Jeary was
represented by Glyn Moody and Cara Charles-Barks was represented by Andy
Hyett.

20 Minutes

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 7" February 2019, previously
circulated, were considered.

Resolved

To approve the minutes as correct.

Page 7



21

22

23

Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

Public Participation

There were no questions from the public.

Chairman's Announcements

The Chairman drew the meeting’s attention to the following information as set
out in the agenda pack:

1) Homelessness Prevention Strategy

“Three months of formal consultation on Wiltshire Council’'s homelessness
prevention strategy will commence shortly.”

“The consultation seeks your views on five suggested priorities for the strategy,
which
are:
e To reduce rough sleeping
e To identify and prevent homelessness at the earliest possible stage
e To ensure services are designed to prevent homelessness and support
those who are homeless.
e To ensure those who are threatened with homelessness or who are
homeless can secure and keep a suitable home.
e To maintain effective strategic direction and partnership working

Each priority is supported by actions to enable the priorities to be achieved
For further information on the homeless strategy please contact Nicole Smith,
Head of Operational Housing Nicole.smith@wiltshire.gov.uk”

2) Wiltshire’s Safeguarding Vulnerable People Partnership

“The Safeguarding Vulnerable People Partnership met for the second time on
18 February. The group discussed development of a forward plan, systemwide
quality assurance, Serious Case Reviews and their replacements, and the
multi-agency approach to tackling County Lines and wider exploitation of
vulnerable children and adults.”

“Following the meeting, a draft Child Exploitation and Missing Children Strategy
for 2019-2021 has been published at www.wiltshirescb.org.uk.”

“Future meetings will retain a focus on County Lines, continue to develop the
forward plan to include an exploration of the implications of the army rebasing

Page 8


mailto:Nicole.smith@wiltshire.gov.uk
http://www.wiltshirescb.org.uk/

24

25

programme, on a local response to the national safeguarding pressures
research and develop our working principles and practices.”

Family and Children's Transformation Programme

It was agreed that this item would be considered after item 9 to enable the
presenter to attend.

Theresa Leavy presented a report on the progress made by the multi-agency
Family and Children’s Transformation (FACT) programme.

Matters raised during the presentation and discussion included: implementation
of a new Case Management System; the development of a partnership
performance and outcomes framework (including a balanced scorecard and the
ability to track individual outcomes over time); the Early Support Hub; the
Diagnostic Referral Tool (DART); Early Support Roadshows; the introduction of
the Family Keyworker within the Support & Safeguarding Service; Integrated
Multi-Professional Early Support; a partnership approach to supporting young
people to live in their families and communities and Making Every Contact
Count (MECC) training.

In response to an issue raised by the Board it was noted that the programme
seeks a culture change around expectations and aspirations and this involves
working with a range of different partners.
It was further noted that the programme needs to continue to engage with the
voluntary sector to intervene earlier within communities and make every contact
count.
It was noted that the B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire Mental Health
Transformation Board is working collaboratively with Child and Adolescent
Mental Health Services (CAMHS) and the FACT programme.
Resolved

1) To note the achievements of 2018

2) To agree the programme outline for 2019

Winter Pressures

Jo Cullen and Emma Legg gave a presentation on the latest performance
information (including delayed transfers of care).

Matters raised during the presentation and discussion included: delayed

transfers of care; NHS 111 call activity and outcomes; SWAST activity and
outcomes; more detailed care home data being available; the Home First

Page 9



26

27

pathway; primary care data; the schemes funded over the winter period;
improvements in domiciliary care; flu and illness preparations and South West
system data.

In response to an issue raised by the Board it was noted that the impact of
South Western Ambulance Service (SWAST) not reaching their targets was felt
in other services and as such there is a need for SWAST data to be shared with
these services.

It was also noted that the partnership with Medvivo is a work in progress and it
is important to not only understand the data provided but to apply it
appropriately.

It was noted that due the complexity of the system the targets and trajectories
that services have provided cannot always be guaranteed.

Resolved
To note the latest performance information.

Health and Social Care Strateqgies

The Chairman drew the Board’s attention to items 10a and 10b of the agenda:

NHS Longterm Plan

Linda Prosser gave an update on the NHS Long Term Plan (LTP) and the
implications for the Sustainability and Transformation Partnership and Wiltshire;
the CCG Operational Plan for 2019/20; and developments in primary care,
estates and joint commissioning.

Matters raised during discussion included: the appointment of a single
management team across the three CCGs of B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire;
the progress made in preparing to implement the LTP expectations for primary
and community services; the new GP contract and the changes to incentives
aligned to the delivery of the LTP; continuing to develop Integrated Care
Systems (ICS); commissioners working through ICSs to make shared decisions
with providers and using a single CCG for each ICS area.

In answer to a question from the Board it was noted that the CCG were working
with Patient Participation Groups (PPGs) and within its communications team to
engage people across all platforms. It was also noted that there was scope for
the CCG to work across Area Boards to engage Wiltshire residents.

Page 10



28

29

Resolved

To note the developments being undertaken across the BSW STP and
Wiltshire to prepare for Integrated Care Systems and the LTP
expectations.

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy

Tracey Daszkiewicz presented a report on the Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategy for consultation in this context.

Matters raised during the presentation and discussion included: the four key
areas being prevention, tackling inequalities, localisation and integration; the
purpose of the strategy; the development of the strategy and the case for
change, achieving change and measuring change.

It was noted that once the strategy is approved there will be a mapping of the
partnerships that arise from the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and that
this will be fed back the Board in due time.

Resolved

To approve the draft JHWS at Appendix 1 for public consultation.

Healthwatch Wiltshire Business Plan 2019/20

Stacey Plumb presented a report on the Healthwatch Wiltshire business
priorities for 2019/20.

Matters raised during the presentation and discussion included: ensuring people
who use health and care services can influence the way they are delivered; the
priorities for 2019/20 as decided by the Local Leadership Board and the need to
develop a workplan on these priorities following conversations with
commissioners and providers.

In answer to a question from the Board it was noted that the organisation will
look at challenges in GP care and dentistry but this also needs to be tackled on
a national and cross-service basis.
Resolved

1) To note the priority areas for the forthcoming year.

2) To agree to work closely with Healthwatch Wiltshire to ensure the

contribution to health and care services in Wiltshire delivers a
positive impact for local people.

Page 11



30

Wiltshire Safequarding Adults Board

Richard Crompton presented a report on the findings of the recent safeguarding
adult reviews and to summarise Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board (WSAB)
activity in 2018 and plans for 2019.

Matters raised during the presentation and discussion included: the outcome of
two Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SAR); the multi-agency recommendations
that arose from the reviews; broader learning from the statutory reviews and the
WSAB Three-Year Strategy.

In response to an issue raised by the Chairman it was noted there has since
been a restructure in how the Wiltshire Council team in Adult C’s case audit and
administer patients’ payments.

It was noted that the complexity of each issue is clear and that there was
difficulty in differentiating the face of the issue from the background of the issue
and there is a need to learn from this.

In response to an issue raised by the Board it was noted that to learn from
these situations the recommendations will now be filtered through individual
agencies and services and via the WSAB itself. The SAB will undertake quality
assurance work as part of an annual auditing process to ensure that protocols
are implemented; with their use tested and recorded.

It was also noted that there is potential for further formal collaboration between
blue light services around similar issues and that there needs to be appropriate
means of ongoing liaison at a high level for these discussions.

Resolved

1) To note the outcome of the 2018 Safeguarding Adults Reviews
relating to Adult C and Adult D.

2) To ensure that this learning has an impact on the work of its
member agencies.

3) To ask the WSAB to provided it with reassurance that changes have
been and will be added as a result of these reviews.

4) To commit the necessary partnership resources to ensure that
action plan can be delivered effectively.

5) To acknowledge the aims of the WSAB’s strategic plan for 2019-21
and continues to support the work of the Board to safeguard
vulnerable adults in Wiltshire.

Page 12



31 Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting will take place at County Hall, Trowbridge on Thursday 23"
May 2019 at 9.00am.

32 Urgent Iltems

There were no urgent items.

(Duration of meeting: 10.00 am - 11.50 am)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Craig Player, of Democratic &
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 713191, e-mail craig.player@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Agenda Item 7

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

Wednesday 23 May 2019

Subject: Better Care Plan

Executive Summary

The Better Care Plan is well established across Wiltshire with clear
programmes of work and governance. The Better Care Fund Programme
provides a platform for transformation and system wide integration. This report
provides an update on the latest performance of BCF It provides management
information set out across the BCF nationally reported performance areas of
Non-Elective Admissions, Delayed Transfer of Care, Permanent Admissions to
Care Homes, % at home 91 days after discharge following reablement.

Recent performance is summarised as follows:

¢ Non-elective admissions continue to increase, leading to pressure
across the system. Average length of stay has reduced by around half
a day for patients whose length of stay is 2 days or more.

e Delayed transfers of care remain slightly over the NHS trajectory. The
latest data for February 2019 shows a slight deterioration when
compared to January, but the level of delayed days remains at the
lowest it has been since the middle of 2015.

¢ Permanent Admissions to Care remain low. Provisional end of year data
suggests Wiltshire is slightly lower than last year, and well under the
target of 500.

e The percentage of people at home 91 days post discharge from hospital
into a reablement remains below the national target. Work is ongoing to
ensure the underlying data is correct and to understand the areas where
outcomes might be improved.

The report also provides an update on the ongoing work to refresh Wiltshire’s
Better Care Fund plan for 2019/20

Proposal(s)

It is recommended that the Board:
i.  Notes the performance levels contained in the Integration and Better
Care Fund Dashboard

Page 15



ii.  Notes the progress being made to refresh the Better Care Fund plan for
Wiltshire

iii.  Approves the request to delegate authority to the Executive Director
(Wiltshire Council), Interim Deputy Chief Executive (Wiltshire), and the
co-chairs of the Health and Wellbeing Board in the event that timing of
the July Health and Well-being Board does not coincide with the
national submission deadlines

Reason for Proposal

To receive a report on the latest performance information (including delayed
transfers of care), along with an update on the refresh of Wiltshire’s Better
Care Fund plan for 2019/20.

To request delegated authority for the sign-off of the 2019/20 BCF Plan as
outlined above.

Dr Carlton Brand Wiltshire Council
Linda Prosser Wiltshire CCG

Page 16




Wiltshire Council

Health and Wellbeing Board

Thursday 23 May 2019

Subject: Better Care Plan

Purpose of Report

1. To provide a status report for the Better Care Fund Programme, including
performance to date and the development of the new plan

Background

2. The Better Care plan is well established across Wiltshire with clear

programmes of work and governance. The Better Care Fund Programme
provides a platform for transformation and system wide integration.

Main Considerations

3.

The Better Care Fund plan continues the commitment of reducing hospital-
based care and increasing locally provided health and care at or closer to
home. This is supported by a responsive Home First model, a new
reablement service and a new Help To Live At Home Alliance. A key
ambition in 2019/20 is to further develop integrated health and care
commissioning as well as service delivery.

The performance dashboard at Appendix 1 contains detailed information
across the Health and Social Care system. In summary:

Non-Elective Admissions:

To M11 2018-19, there had been 46,464 non-maternity emergency
admissions to hospital for Wiltshire registered patients. This is an increase
of 5.1% (2,259 admissions) on the same period last year. The increase in
admissions is driven by an increase in zero length of stay admissions, which
have increased by 16.6% (1,979 admissions). This increase is at GWH
(577 admissions) which reflects a change in coding practice for Ambulatory
Care Sensitive admissions which are now counted as an admission rather
than an OP attendance and RUH (1,018 admissions).

Admissions with a length of stay of 1 to 6 days have increased by 6.4%
(1,235 admissions), predominantly at RUH & SFT. Patients with a length
of stay of a week or more are up 0.3% (24 admissions). February saw a
decrease in the length of stay overall. Length of stay for acute specific
emergency admissions with a stay of 2 days or more has decreased by
around a day from 11.1 days in 2017-18 to around 10.6 in the current year
to M11.

Page 17



Avoidable Ambulatory Care Sensitive (ACS) emergency admissions in M11
show an overall increase of 4.8% (376 admissions). There has been an
increase at all 3 Wiltshire trusts with RUH seeing the largest increase of
around 9.6% (277 admissions). Analysis by the type of condition shows
that acute conditions (e.g. ENT Infections or UTI) account for the bulk of the
increase, chronic conditions (e.g. Angina or COPD) are similar to last year,
while other and vaccine preventable conditions (e.g. Influenza or TB) have
seen a decrease.

To M10 2018-19, admissions from non-LD care homes were 2.8% (53
admissions) higher than the same period in 2017-18. When split by CCG
group the South has seen a reduction of 16.6% (109 admissions) while
there have been increases in the North of 9.6% (67 admissions) and in the
West 16.6% (95 admissions).

Delayed Transfers of Care:

Wiltshire submitted a Delayed Transfers of Care trajectory to NHS Engalnd
with the intention of achieving the target set by NHS England in December.
The trajectory and performance to date is outlined below. Although we
have not met the trajectory, there has been improved performance and we
are significantly closer to the target.

Delayed Transfer of Care trajectory and actuals 2017/18

DToC Jul- | Aug- | Sept- | Oct- | Nov- | Dec- | Jan- | Feb- | Mar-
Days 18 18 18 18 18 18 19 19 19

NHS Plan 703 703 703 703 703 703 703 703 703

Actual | 1,336 | 1,265 | 1,152 | 1,271 | 978 833 836 899

SC Plan 389 389 389 389 389 389 389 389 389

Actual 522 493 476 697 534 423 371 383

Joint Plan 108 108 108 108 108 108 108 108 108

Actual 134 59 29 73 95 113 96 92

Total Plan 1,200 ‘ 1,200 1,200 ‘ 1,200 1,200 1,200 ‘ 1,200 1,200 1,200

Actual [RENCIV: ‘ 1,817 1,657 ‘ 2,041 1,607 1,369 ‘ 1,303 1,374

February 2019 saw 1,374 lost bed days for Wiltshire patients which is an
increase of 5.4% (71 days) compared to January and a reduction of 19.5%
(333 days) compared to February 2018. To M11 for 2018-19, we have seen
a reduction in the number of delayed days of around 25% (5,759 days).

Appendix 2 of this report provides a detailed analysis of the situation, along
with National benchmarking data

Page 18



Delayed Transfers of Care Comparison with 2017-18

Wiltshire - DTOC - Delayed Days Trend

3000
<
+—
S 2500
€
2 2000
(%]
&
< 1500
©
g
B 1000
[}
2 500
©
+—
S)
= 0
T 0§ ¢ 3 % 3 & o§ o3 §F § oS
< E = - oo [= [e) = [ > > T
o} +— c = E
Ps Q 8} 9] [J] © e
o o 3 ] - L
3 z @
aw 2017-18 ' 2018-19 Trajectory

The number of delayed days each month is lower than the same month in
the previous year. In 2018-19, we continue to see reductions in delayed
days across the main Wiltshire providers:

e GWH (218 days lower, 5.8%)

RUH (43 days lower, 1.0%)

SFT (791 days lower, 16.3%)

AWP (1,264 days lower, 43.4%)

WH&C (2,973 days lower, 42.9%)

Out of area Hospitals (470 days lower, 56.8%).

Delayed Transfers of Care: Reasons for Delay (% of total)

35.0 -
30.0 A
) J
?BD 25.0
8 J
= 20.0
8 15.0 |
—
& 10.0 -
5.0 -
0.0 - T T il . .
2 oo = Q [J] ) > @ ) %) ) P
S £ £ £ £ T E§ 2 £ s 2
S 2 c 2 2 2 =R o 3 5
7 © < < I E © S °
7 =} pas —_ ) o =
3 &= i o < 8 52 = a T
s 2 2 < @ T o c
< o 3 () S W ®© ©
] O © = G
a < D N
c [J] *E
(] o 3]
= =
(T
o

®2017-18 ®2018-19 (to M11)

The percentage of delayed days associated with Domiciliary Care and Non-
Acute Transfer has increased when compared to 2017-18, while delays
associated with Placement (residential care), Equipment / Adaptations and
Choice have reduced.

Page 19



The chart below shows the breakdown of delayed days by cause in 2018-
19.

2018-19 (Q1) Delayed Transfers of Care: Reasons for Delay (% of total)

0% 0%

1%

2018-19 (to M11)

= Assessment (431 days)
m Public Funding (74 days)
Non Acute transfer (3066 days)
= Residential home (2139 days)
= Nursing home (3654 days)
DomCare (5741 days)
329% m Equipment/ adaptations (556 days)
m Patient/ family choice (1255 days)
= Disputes (76 days)
® Housing (704 days)
® QOther (20 days)

Permanent Care Home Admissions

Provisionally, there have been 358 permanent admissions to a care home
during 2018-19, which is slightly lower than the total in 2017-18. This
continues the historic trend which supports the local aspiration for care as
close to home as possible. This does potentially have consequences in
relation to provision of care at home as the acuity of patients needing care
at home has increased, putting additional pressure on primary and home
care services.

Reablement (% at home 91 days post discharge from hospital into a
reablement service)

For discharges in Q2 2018-19, reablement performance remained similar
to the previous quarter at 68.1%. The Q1 and Q2 performance is similar to
the annual average in 2017-18 (69.2%) which was a drop from the
performance seen in earlier years which was generally over 80%.

Overall, performance in Q2 was 69.9% (Q1 - 69.9%), IC Beds achieved
63.7% (Q1 - 62.6%) and ISP Clients was 73.3% (Q1 - 62.5%). Itis important
to note that there are currently patient and service consent issues relating
to the collection of data, which are being investigated.

Other BCP Indicators:
In March, the number of admissions to step down IC Beds were 40 which

is higher than the levels seen recently and during 2017-18. Discharges
were also slightly higher than last month at 39 (2017-18 average was 48).

Page 20



10.

Length of stay for step down rehab patients in March was 51.5, which is a
further deterioration on that seen in January & February.

The 10 beds lost when one of the homes gave notice have now been
replaced with 5 beds now on stream. This reduction in beds may have
impacted on admissions and performance. The occupancy rate for step
down beds was around 89%, while for the step-up beds it was around
93% although this is helped by step down activity.

The new domiciliary Help To Live At Home Framework contract has
commenced. New home care activity is higher with 96 new clients in
March compared to 66 in February, 71 in January and 60 in December.
The average number of new clients per month this year has been 76
compared to 2017-18 which was around 112. This reflects the impact of
the new reablement service which is helping people reduce care needs.
Ongoing care at home activity was also slightly higher in March with nearly
1,778 people supported during the month which is an increase from
around 1,723 in February.

UCAH referrals were broadly similar in February at 54 to the 55 in January
which was a decrease from the 60 in December and 66 in November. This
remains well under the target of around 80 referrals a month. In February,
the admission avoidance percentage was around 75% which was similar
to January but a deterioration in December (95%) and November (91%).
In February, this service supported the discharge of 12 patients which was
similar to January (15), December (17) and November (19), the monthly
average is around 11 per month.

Better Care Fund 2018/19

Refresh of Wiltshire’s Better Care Fund plan for 2019/20.

On 10 April the 2019-20 Better Care Fund: Policy Framework (
https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/part-rel/transformation-fund/bcf-plan/)
Was released by the Department of Health and Social Care and the
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government.

The document sets out the framework for the National BCF submission
process, however does not provide the guidance or the timescales for
submission which have yet to be released. At the time of this report the
best information we have is that the guidance will be made available in
week 2 May, with a likely submission deadline in early July 2019.

In general terms, the Policy framework restates and reiterates the original
intentions of the Better Care Fund (Person-centred Integrated Care), and
there is very notable change when compared to earlier years. Main points
to note are;

e The vast majority of areas have reported a positive impact on the
integration of health and social care, and that the BCF had

Page 21


https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/part-rel/transformation-fund/bcf-plan/

improved joint working between health and social care in their
locality

The New Care Model Vanguards have provided valuable lessons
for Sustainability and Transformation Partnerships, which are now
being taken to the next stage by the emerging Integrated Care
Systems.

The Policy direction for integrated personal budgets is reinforced
with the implementation of the Comprehensive Model, which sets
out the road map to deliver the Long-Term Plan’s objective to
deliver the Comprehensive Model for Personalised Care to 2.5
million people by 2023-24.

A restatement that the commitment remains to create a technology
infrastructure that allows systems to communicate securely, using
open standards for data and interoperability, enabling health and
care professionals to have access to the information they need to
provide care. Five Exemplars covering 23.5 million people will
each receive up to a total of £7.5 million over two years. (Thames
Valley and Surrey region, Yorkshire and Humber, Greater
Manchester, Wessex and London)

Since February 2017, more than 2,280 beds per day have been

freed up nationally by reducing NHS and social care delays. This
has been supported by the Better Care Fund and targeted funding
from Government through the improved Better Care Fund (iBCF).

A reminder of the work to produce the document “Shifting the
Centre of Gravity” report on making person-centred, place-based
integrated care a reality (published in October 2018).

References are made to the NHS Long Term Plan, and forthcoming
Adult Social Care Green paper.

The 2019/20 plan will operate with the same National Conditions as
in 2017-19:

Requirements for narrative plans will be simplified with areas not
required to repeat information they have previously provided in their
2017-19 plans, however given the earlier requirement placed on the
Wiltshire system through the CQC local system review, a decision
has been taken to produce the full narrative document.

Plans will be assured and moderated regionally in line with the
operational planning assurance process set out in the Better Care
Fund Planning when this is released.

The nationally mandated metrics remain unchanged (Delayed
Transfers of Care; Non-elective admissions (General and Acute);

Page 22



11.

12.

Admissions to residential and care homes; and Effectiveness of
reablement).

e Winter Pressures funding has been confirmed for 2019/20, and
whilst will still be paid as a local authority grant, winter pressures
will be reported through the Better Care Fund.

The Programme team is working on the refresh of the Better Care
Fund plan, including a detailed review of all budget lines ahead of the
guidance for 2019/20 being published.

It is anticipated that the submission deadline will not co-incidence with the
July meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board. It is, therefore,
recommended, that delegated authority for sign-off of the BCF 2019/20
submission is given to:

Executive Director-DASS(Wiltshire Council)

Accountable Officer (Wiltshire Commissioning Group)

Co-chairs of the Health and Wellbeing Board

End of Year National return

All areas were requested to complete an annual return to the National
Better Care Support Team. This is attached at appendix 3 for the
information of the Health and Wellbeing Board.

Timescales

In the next period activity falls into three main areas:

Finalisation of the refreshed Better Care Plan for 2018/19, including the
high impact model for delayed transfers

The continued mobilisation of the Wiltshire Integration Programme
including the associated benefits realisation plan

James Corrigan

Better Care Programme Manager

Wiltshire Council and Clinical Commissioning Group
07.05.19

Appendices:

Appendix 1: BCP Dashboard

Appendix 2: Detailed analysis of DTOC performance to February 2019.
Appendix 3: National end of year return

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Gz abed

Wiltshire Better Care Fund Dashboard - April 2019

DTOC increased by around 5% in February with both NHS and ASC delays increasing. Despite this delayed days remain around
their lowest level since the middle of 2015. Overall we are still seeing a much better position than last year. Provisional
indications are the number of delayed days in March may be simialr or slightly higher than February.

Non-elective admissions in February remain similar to the levels seen through the year overall they are around 6% higher thna
last year. Length of stay for admissions with a stay of 2 days or more has reduced by around half a day compared to last year.
Permanent admissions remain low and provisional year end data suggests we are simialr to last year and well under the target of

500.
[ Apr-18 | May-18 | Jun-18 | Jul-18 | Aug-18 | Sep-18 | Oct-18 | Nov-18 | Dec-18 | Jan-19 | Feb-19 [ Mar-19 Red Amber | Green
National Indicators
Specific Acute Non Elective Admissions <3250 p2500r<37{ >3750
Specific Acute NEL Admissions (LoS) 10.4 10.0 10 11 10 9
Permanent Admissions to Care Homes >525  [525o0r >50( <500
At Home 91 days post discharge with reablement 67.1 <80% [|80% or <86( >86%
Delayed transfers of Care 1,303 >1350 |[1350 or>12( <1200
Wiltshire BCF Schemes
IC Bed (Discharges) - Step Down 48 <45 >45 or <60 >60
IC Bed (Discharges) - Step Up 8 <7 >7 or <10 >10
Community Hospital Beds - Admissions 76 74 <60 >60 or <80 >80
High Intensity Care - Referrals 15 13 17 17 15 13 <12 >12 or <18 >18
Urgent Care at Home 70 66 <60 >60 or <80 >80
Rehab Support Workers 67 <60 >60 or <80 >80

Community Geriatrics

Fracture Liaison

CHS

Wiltshire iBCF Activity

20 Additional SD IC Beds
Admissions
Discharges

3 Specialist MH IC Beds

Additional RSW / UCAH Reablement

Housing Adviser

‘ L
Wiltshir
linical Commissioning Grou,

Wiltshire (

~————_ Wher




Wiltshire Better Care Fund Dashboard - April 2019

Non elective admissions are 6.4% higher than the same period last year and remains over plan for 2018-19, M11 was under plan by 1.4% (56 admissions), for the YTD the
CCG is 3.7% over plan (1,646 admissions) the majority of which happened in Q1. Activity has increased in all age bands, the percentage increase being greater in
children and adults of working age.

14,000 - . L. . 60,000 -
Quarterly Admissions and Admission Trajectory mm Actual  =——Plan Cumulative Number of All Age Acute Specific NEL Admissions
12,000 50,000 | W2016-17
10,000 4 52017-18
’ 40,000 -
m2018-19
8,000 -
30,000 |
6,000 -
20,000
4,000 -
2,000 - 10,000 -
o) Q117/18 Q217/18 Q317/18 Q417/18 Q118/19 Q218/19 Q318/19 Q418/19
Op) 30000 1 Cumulative number of admission by Aze Band Acute Specific NEL Admissions Age 65+ Rate per - 100,000 population
Y A8 24000
25000 | ~ ®2016-17 22000 -
52017-18 20000 1
18000 |
20000 -
52018-19 (M10) 16000 |
14000 |
15000
12000 |
10000 |
10000 2000 1
6000 -
5000 2000
2000 -
0 0 - ‘
Age 0-17 Age 18-64 Age 65+ 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
Source: CCG SUS Data
' LJ
Wiltshire Council Wiltshir
Where everybody matters o o PRSI
linical Commissioning Grou;




Wiltshire Better Care Fund Dashboard - April 2019

Activity is higher at all the 3 main acute trusts, RUH has seen the greatest level of growth in activity of 12.7% (1,901 admissions), while growth at SFT is 4.3% (616
admissions) and at GWH admissions are 7.0% higher (721 admissions). Admissions are slightly lower at other out of area trusts.

)2 abed

20,000 - 20,000 -
RUH Cumulative Number of All Age Acute Specific NEL Admissions SFT Cumulative Number of All Age Acute Specific NEL Admissions
18,000 - 18,000 -
5201617 52016-17
16,000 - 16,000 -
=2017-18 =2017-18
14,000 14,000
52018-19 =2018-19
12,000 - 12,000
10,000 10,000
8,000 8,000
6,000 6,000
4,000 4,000
2,000 2,000
0 0
20,000 - 20,000 -
GWH Cumulative Number of All Age Acute Specific NEL Admissions Other Cumulative Number of All Age Acute Specific NEL Admissions
18,000 - 18,000 -
52016-17 52016-17
16,000 - 16,000 -
=2017-18 12017-18
14,000 - 14,000 -
=2018-19 52018-19
12,000 - 12,000 -
10,000 - 10,000 -
8,000 -| 8,000 -
6,000 - 6,000 -
4,000 -| 4,000 -|
2,000 - 2,000 -
0 - o0
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Source: CCG SUS Data

Wiltshire Council

Where everybody matters

' LJ
Wiltshir
linical Commissioning Grou;




Wiltshire Better Care Fund Dashboard - April 2019

O

BETTER CARE PLAN|

This shows the average length of stay for all acute specific non elective admissions which have a length of stay of 2 or more days. February saw a simialr length of stay to
January of around 10.5 days. Overall the average length of stay has reduced by around a half a day from around 11.1 days in 2017-18 to 10.6 days in 2018-19 (M11). At
RUH (11.0 to 10.0) and SFT (12.2 to 11.6) there has been a reduction of over half a day in LoS, while at GWH (9.9 to 9.8) the average length of stay is broadly similar to

last year.

14.0 - 2017-18

Length of Stay All Age Acute Specific NEL Admissions with a 2+ days LoS
§2018-19
12,0

10.0 |
8.0 -
6.0 -
4.0

2.0

0.0 -
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

8¢ obed

160 1 =2017-18

m2018-19

SFT Length of Stay All Age Acute Specific NEL Admissions with a 2+ days LoS
14.0

12.0 4
10.0 A
8.0
6.0
4.0

2.0 A

0.0

Apr May Feb Mar

Source: CCG SUS Data

Wiltshire Council

=== Where cverybody malters

14.0 1 cee . . 2017-18
RUH Length of Stay All Age Acute Specific NEL Admissions with a 2+ days LoS

m2018-19
12.0 -
10.0 -
8.0
6.0 1
4.0
2.0
0.0 4

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

120 4 . . . 201718

GWH Length of Stay All Age Acute Specific NEL Admissions with a 2+ days LoS

m2018-19
10.0 -
8.0 1
6.0
40 4
2.0 -
0.0 4

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

' L

Wiltshir

linical Commissioning Grou




Wiltshire Better Care Fund Dashboard - April 2019

For the year to date overall avoidable ACS emergency admissions are up 4.8% (376 admissions), this across all 3 trusts with RUH seeing the greatest 9.6% (277
admissions), GWH 5.0% (105 admissions) and SFT increase of 0.7% (19 admissions). Admissions for acute conditions has increased the most, while for chronic
conditions the level of admissions is broadly similar and admissions for other and vaccine preventable conditions has fallen.

Overall admissions from non LD care homes have increased slightly in 2018-19 by around 2.8% (53 admissions). When split by CCG group the South has seen a reduction
of 16.6% (109 admissions) while there have been increases in the North of 9.6% (67 admissions) and in the West 16.6% (95 admissions).

10,000 -
Cumulative Number of All Age Avoidable ACS Emergency Admissions
9,000 -

8,000 - m2017-18
7,000 -
m2018-19
6,000 -
5,000 -
4,000 -
3,000 -
2,000 -

1,000 -

4000 4

3500 4

3000 4

2500

2000

1500 -

1000 -

500

m2017-18

Cumulative number of all age avoidable ACS emergency admissions by condition

m2018-19 (FOT
M11)

Other ACS

Acute ACS Chronic ACS

62 abed

2,500
Cumulative Emergency Admissions from non LD Care Homes

H2016-17
2,000
2017-18

m2018-19
1,500

1,000

500

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

900 4

800

700 -

600 -

500

400 -

300 A

200 A

100 -

m2016-17 (M11)
2017-18 (M11)
2018-19 (M11)

Cumulative Emg adms from non LD care homes by CCG Group

WWYKD

NEW SARUM

Source: CCG SUS Data

Wiltshire Council

Where everybody matters

' Ld
Wiltshir
linical Commissioning Grou;




Wiltshire Better Care Fund Dashboard - April 2019

In March there were 29 new permanent admissions to care homes in those aged 65 and over, this is below the monthly average for the YTD (30) and the average in 2017-
18 which was around 31. Provisonally our year end total is 358 but this is subject to final quality checks prior to submission as part of the Council ASCOF return. If this is

confirmed it is similar to 2017-18 (367 adms) and well below the target for 2018-19 of 500.

600 - .
Annual Placements and Trajectory e Actual  ——Target

500 -

400 A

300

200 -

100

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 (FOT)

0€ abed

Source: ASC Performance Team

Wiltshire Council

500 -

450

400 -

Cumulative Number of Permanent Admissions to Care Home (Age 65+)
=2016-17
m2017-18
=2018-19

\JLJ
= Where cverybody matters . o 'WIItShlf
linical Commissioning Grou,




Wiltshire Better Care Fund Dashboard - April 2019

(.

The number of patients entering reablement has reduced in 2017/18 due to changes in the discharge pathway following the introduction Home First, we are now seeing the
number increasing again. Discussions with WH&C confirm this is likely to be more accurate than the 2016-17 position and numbers will return to expected levels in the
coming months. Q2 discharges saw 68.1% at home 91 days after discharge. Performance is now consistently around 67%, work is ongoing to understand how this might

be improved to the levels seen historically.

1000 o Reablement - % at Home 91 days post discharge

90.0

80.0 -
70.0 -
60.0 -
50.0 -
40.0
30.0
20.0 -
10.0 -

0.0 -
Ql|Q Q3 Q4|Q | Qa3

2014-15

Q| QljQ|a
2016-17

Q4 | a1
2015-16

Q2 | a3
2017-18

Q4

Q1

Q2 | a3
2018-19

!

3000 4

2500 -

2000 -

1500 -

1000

500 -

Cumulative Number of discharges into reablement
52015-16
52016-17
m2017-18
=2018-19

T¢ abed

Source: ASC Performance Team & WH&C

Wiltshire Council

= Where cverybody matters

' L]
Wiltshir
linical Commissioning Grou,




Wiltshire Better Care Fund Dashboard - April 2019

The number of delayed days increased by 5.4% (71 days) in February to 1,374 and remains 14.5% (174 days) above the trajectory target of 1,200. NHS attributable delays
increased 7.5% in February, ASC attributable delays also increased 3.2% in February but remain under the trajectory. Waiting for Packages of Care and Placements have
accounted for around 60% of the delayed days in the 11 months of 2018-19 to date. Overall there has been a reduction of around 25% on delayed days (5,759) which is the
equivalent of around 17 beds.

8,000 - . 30,000
4 m Actual ——Target ' . . .
Quarterly Delayed Days & Trajectory ctua arge Wiltshire Cumulative Delayed Transfer of Care - Days
7,000 -|
25,000 | ®2016-17
6,000 -| "2017-18
20,000 -
5,000 | ®2018-19
4,000 15,000 -
3,000 -|
10,000 -
2,000 -|
U 5,000 -|
Q 1,000 -
D 0 : : : : : : : 0
Q117/18  Q217/18  Q317/18  Q417/18  Q118/19  Q218/19  Q318/19 Q4 18/19 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
o . I
% Delayed Days by responsible organisation % Delayed Days by reason
1o0% A i
_ Housing
90% 2018-19
(to M11)  Disputes
80%
Patient/ family choice
70%
m Equipment/ adaptations
60%
2017-18 = DomCare
"
50% M Nursing home
40% H Residential home
30% B Non Acute transfer
20% 201617 354w public Funding
10% B Assessment
0% ‘
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0 30.0 35.0 40.0

Source: NHS England Monthly Data

\ILJ
Wiltshir
linical Commissioning Grou

Wiltshire Council

~——— Where everybody matters




Wiltshire Better Care Fund Dashboard - April 2019

GWH, SFT and AWP have seen a good reductions in delayed days compared to last year, while RUH has seen a smaller reduction than the other local trusts.

£e abed

10,000 - 10,000 -
GWH Cumulative Delayed Transfer of Care - Days RUH Cumulative Delayed Transfer of Care - Days
9,000 - 9,000 -
m2016-17 52016-17
8,000 - 8,000 -
12017-18 #2017-18
7,000 - 7,000 -
m2018-19 ®2018-19
6,000 - 6,000 -
5,000 - 5,000 -
4,000 -| 4,000 -|
3,000 - 3,000 -
2,000 - 2,000 -
1,000 - 1,000
0 - 0 -
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
10,000 - 10,000 -
SFT Cumulative Delayed Transfer of Care - Days AWP Cumulative Delayed Transfer of Care - Days
9,000 -| 9,000 -
52016-17 52016-17
8,000 -| 8,000 -
#2017-18 =2017-18
7,000 - 7,000 -
=2018-19 =2018-19
6,000 - 6,000 -
5,000 - 5,000 -
4,000 -| 4,000 -|
3,000 - 3,000 -
2,000 - 2,000 -
1,000 - 1,000 -
0 - o0
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Source: NHS England Monthly Data
' LJ
Wiltshire Council Wiltshir

== Where cverybody malters

linical Commissioning Grou;




Wiltshire Better Care Fund Dashboard - April 2019

Delays in Community Hospital are substantially lower than last year, while delays in Out of Area Hospitals have also reduced in the 11 months of 2018-19 to date. For
NHS delays there has been an increase in the percentage of delays due to nursing home placement, housing and non acute transfers. For ASC delays the percentage of
delays associated with residential placement and domiciliary care packages have increased.

¢ obed

10,000 - 10,000 -
WH&C Cumulative Delayed Transfer of Care - Days 0000 Other Cumulative Delayed Transfer of Care - Days
9,000 - X 8
W 2016-17 W 2016-17
8,000 - 8,000 -
m2017-18 ™ 2017-18
7,000 - 7,000
m2018-19 m2018-19
6,000 - 6,000 -
5,000 - 5,000 -
4,000 - 4,000 -
3,000 - 3,000 -
2,000 A 2,000 -
1,000 A 1,000 -
o e e e . mme wie wile ml. wlie e s ml
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
% Delayed Days by reason - ASC % Delayed Days by reason - NHS
2018-19 2018-19 i
44.7 i 26.8 Housing
(to M11) Housing (to M11) )
W Disputes 26.8 W Disputes
Patient/ family choice Patient/family choice
2017-18 ® Equipment/ adaptations 2017-18 27.2 m Equipment/adaptations
= DomCare W DomCare
M Nursing home B Nursing home
= Resi . H Residential home
2016-17 41.0 Residential home 2016-17 31.8
B Non Acute transfer 327 B Non Acute transfer
M Public Funding H Public Funding
B Assessment B Assessment
2015-16 401 2015-16 29.6
. 324
4.2 .
0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0 30.0 35.0 40.0 45.0 50.0 0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0 30.0 35.0 40.0 45.0

Source: NHS England Monthly Data

Wiltshire Council

~———m Where everybody matters

' Ll
Wiltshir
linical Commissioning Grouy,




Wiltshire Better Care Fund Dashboard - April 2019

This presents the latest data on delayed transfers of care based on the weekly data which is not validated in the same way as the monthly data.

For acute delays the data show the increase in February we see in the monthly data and that this continued into early March before reducing back to the levels seen earlier
in the quarter. April 2019 saw an increase in delays in the first week which fell back again in Week 2, Week 3 data excludes RUH which is why it seems to fall further.
For non-acute delays we do not have the complete picture as AWP do not submit, the weekly data for WH&C shows they reamin well under the trajectory.

Ge abed

400  Unvalidated Weekly Delayed Days - Acute
350 4
300 4
250 4
200

150 A

100 A

50 4
0
1‘2‘3‘4‘5 1‘2‘3‘4 1‘2‘3‘4‘5 1‘2‘3‘4 1‘2‘3‘4 1‘2‘3‘4‘5 1‘2‘3‘4 1‘2‘3‘4 1‘2‘3‘4‘5 1‘2‘3‘4‘5 1‘2‘3‘4
April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
m— /\cutal (18/19) Acutal (19/20) === Plan

1‘2‘3‘4‘5

Source: CSU Unvalidated Weekly DTOC Summary

Wiltshire Council

. Where everybody matters

180 4

160 -

/—\ P - ~

140

120

100

80 -

60 -

40

20 A

Unvalidated Weekly Delayed Days - WH&C*

1‘2‘3‘4‘5 1‘2‘3‘4 1‘2‘3‘4‘5 1‘2‘3‘4 1‘2‘3‘4 1‘2‘3‘4‘5

April May June July Aug Sept

— Acutal (18/19) Acutal (19/20)

1‘2‘3‘4

1‘2‘3‘4‘5 1‘2‘3‘4‘5 1‘2‘3‘4 1‘2‘3‘4‘5

Dec Jan Feb Mar

e Plan

\JLJ

Wiltshir
linical Commissioning Grou,




Wiltshire Better Care Fund Dashboard - April 2019

Urgent Care at Home referrals were 54 in February, which is simialr to January (55) but lower than December (60) and November (66). This remains under the 80 target.
The % of admissions avoided was around 75% which is also simialr to January but a deterioration on December. The average number of monthly referrals is 61 which
remains slightly lower than the 2017-18 average of 66 per month but higher than the 2016-17 of 50. There were 12 referrals to support discharge in February which is
similar to January but higher than monthly average for YTD (11) which is still lower than 2017-18 (14), 2016-17 (9) and 2015-16 (12).
New Care at Home activity has changed following the transfer from the previous Help to Live at Home contract to the new Dom Care Framework contract, this has caused
a change in the underlying data. While the number of new clients is substantially lower than last year this reflects, difficulties with getting packages but also the early
success in the new reablement service reducing the number needing packages of care. The number of clients supported in each month is also increasing.

9g abed

900 -
Urgent Care at Home - Cumulative total referrals
800 -

m2016-17
2017-18

m2018-19

120.0 4

100.0 -

80.0 -

60.0 -

40.0 A

0.0 -

Urgent Care at Home - % Admissions Avoided

m2016-17 =2017-18 m2018-19

1600 1 Home Care Clients - Cumulative new clients

1,400 2017-18

m2018-19
1,200 -
1,000 -
800 -
600 -

400 -

200 -

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

2,000 1 Home Care Clients - Number of ongoing clients in month ®2017-18  m2018-19
1,800 -
1,600 -
1,400 -
1,200 -
1,000 -
800 -
600 -
400 -
200 -
0 -

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Source: Home Care Data, Wiltshire Council ASC Performance Team. UC@H Data, MEDVIVO

Wiltshire Council

Where everybody matters

' Ld
Wiltshir
linical Commissioning Grou,




Wiltshire Better Care Fund Dashboard - April 2019

The number of admissions and discharges remain under the levels seen last year as the impact of the loss of 5 beds is being felt. Length of stay for step down rehab

increased in March to 51.5 days, for step down non rehab patients the length of stay increased to 39.0 days. The number of admissions to step up beds reduced slightly in
March and the length of stay also reduced to around 13 days.

700 4 700 - . .
Cumulative IC Bed Admissions Cumulative IC Bed Discharges

600 | m2016-17 600 1 m2016-17

2 201718
so0 | m2017-18

m2018-19 m2018-19

400 -
300 -
200
100
U o
QJ Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
w 900 7 Step Down - Average Length of Stay ——5D - Rehab 1000 7 step Up - Average Length of Stay ——SsU-All
~ 80.0 5D - Other 90.0
70.0 4 80.0
70.0
60.0 -
60.0 -
50.0 -
50.0 4
40.0
40.0
30.0 4 30.0 1
20.0 20.0 4
10.0 10.0
00— [0 e e e e L e B e e e e B o LA s s e e e e B BN B s S e S S S S e}
CE8LLLYYEANNOENNNNNENNR I NN NN0NNNNR GRS S:jzjaj:jzjzj§$;;;’;;;;;;;;;szzjzjg‘:?&?&?@zjggggg
S S e . R SR ) L >c 5 ooayg @ Cch KL >c5 wayy 2O Cc o % g c S Ay 2o cas
5537383585883 55257582385888585853238:28¢:8¢8 2853238885858 8833788289¢888337398%88z=¢e¢
Source: ASC Performance Team
'l
Wiltshire Council wiltshir
~——m. Where everybody matters

linical Commissioning Grou;




abe

Wiltshire Better Care Fund Dashboar

- April 2019

This is the proof of concept of this new format for the dashboard, work is ongoing to develop this sheet to include the main KPI information for
the schemes managed under the Better Care Fund. It is hoped over the coming months we will be able to update this to include more

information on the schemes.

Scheme

Apr-18

May-18

Jun-18

Jul-18

Aug-18

Sep-18

Oct-18

Nov-18

Dec-18

Jan-19

Feb-19

Mar-19

Acute Trust Liaison

GWH

RUH

SFT

Access to Care (including Single Point of Access)

Carers Emergency Card

Telecare Call Centre

Telecare Equipment

Urgent Care and Response at Home

57

84

50

59

70

58

54

66

60

55

Hospital at Home

[SFT

Integrated Discharge

GWH

RUH

SFT

Enhanced Discharge Service for EOL Pathway

IC Beds - SD

[Discharges

48

42

44

44

42

39

36

39

32

[Los

35.8

IC Beds - SU (South)

[Discharges

33.0

1

38.6

33.9

43.9

37.0

39.7

48.1

40.8

36.9

40.1

47.3

[Los

12.0

87.5

49.8

38.2

513

26.6

46.8

37.9

24.4

12.7

Therapy provision for Intermediate Care Beds (Contacts)

944

1,016

973

1,084

1,190

1,021

1,205

1,135

787

1,053

798

Step Up Beds (WHC)

High Intensity Care (WHC)

[Admissions

13

17

23

15

13

[Los

33.6

39.7

21.3

25.6

24.4

49.9

42.5

28.3

21.9

32.8

323

Care Home Liaison

East Kennet SHARP

Community Geriatricians

Home First (Rehab Support Workers Initiative)

78

67

55

14

90

94

136

130

148

179

178

Carers

Integrated Community Equipment

Community Services

EOL

The Leg Club Model

Wiltshire C

= Where cverybody malters

UuUl il

' LJ
Wiltshir

linical Commissioning Grou,




6¢ abed

M M (" A1 " | . .
WlltSher Council Wiltshire
~——————==_ Where everybody matters &) Clinical Commissioning Group

2018-19 BCF DTOC Summary
February 2019 NHS E Data &
April 2019 Local Data

11t April 2019



O abed

Wiltshire Counci . Wiltshire
~—————=_ Where everybody malters

Clinical Commissioning Group

February DTOC Delayed Days - Summary
Wiltshire delayed days increased 5.4% (71 days) in
February ‘19, 174 days higher than the target (1,200).

NHS delays (899):
— Increased in Feb by 7.5%, over trajectory by 196 days.

ASC delays (383):

— Increased in Feb by 3.2%, but remains under trajectory.
GWH & RUH are the only Wiltshire providers over their

trajectory




Wiltshire Council Wiltshire

Where everybody maters Clinical Commissioning Group

Comparison Trend for All Delayed Days

Wiltshire - DTOC - Delayed Days Trend

3000
e
)
S 2500
=
3 2000
A 2
Q S 1500
[9)
» @
_r>5~ 1000
()
2 500
©
4
o)
= 0
5 & ¢ 5 & 8§ & g g § § ¢
< = = - o0 [= e} c c s | > ©
) +— c = z
< Q (@] (O] () © o]
& © 3 8§ -~ @
3 z o©
s 2017-18 mmm 2018-19 Trajectory




2 abed

Wiltshire Council Wiltshire

Where everybody maters Clinical Commissioning Group

Comparison Trend for Daily Delayed Days

Wiltshire - DTOC - Daily Delayed Days Trend

NI

E

100.0

80.0

60.0

40.0

Daily Delayed Days

20.0

0.

o

April

June

July
August
October
November
December
January
February
March

September

E— 2017-18 s 2018-19 2 = = = NHS England Expectation



¢ abed

NHS|

WiltShil‘C COUHC“ Wiltshire

~—————=_ Where everybody matters

Clinical Commissioning Group

Acute Weekly Delayed Days — 2018-19

400 -~
350 -
300 -
250
200
150 -
100 -
50 -

0

Unvalidated Weekly Delayed Days - Acute

1|2|3|4|5 1|2|3|4 1|2|3|4|5 1|2|3|4 1|2|3| 1|2|3|4|5 1|2|3|4 1|2|3|4 1|2|3|4|5 1|2|3|4|5 1|2|3|4 1|2|3|4|5

April | May | June | July | Aug | Sept | Oct | Nov | Dec Jan | Feb | Mar

s Acutal (18/19) esmmmpPlan




vt abed

INHS|
Wiltshire Counc1| Wiltshire

Where everybody mat Clinical Commissioning Group

Non-acute Weekly Delayed Days — 2018-19

180 1 Unvalidated Weekly Delayed Days - WH&C*

160 -
140 -
120 -
100 -

80 -

60 -

40 -

20 H

0
1|2|3|4|51|2|3|A‘1|2|3|4|5 1|2|3|A‘1|2|3|41|2|3|4|5 1|2|3|4‘1|2|3|41|2|3|4|51|2|3|4|5 1|2|3|A‘1|2|3|4|5
April | May | June | July | Aug | Sept | Oct | Nov | Dec Jan Feb | Mar

BN Acuta| e plgn
* AWP do not currently submit weekly data to the CCG




Gy abed

Wiltshire Council Wiltshire

s S Clinical Commissioning Group

February DTOC Delayed Days
—-m-—m

Wiltshire 1,374 1,200
GWH 266 79 0 345 100
RUH 325 102 0 427 175
SFT 124 57 0 181 225
AWP 31 0 50 81 200
WH&C 119 145 0 264 450

Others 34 0 33 67 50




ot abed

Wiltshire Council L

Wiltshire
L s s Clinical Commissioning Group

Trend for All Delayed Days

3900 1 Wiltshire Provisional BCF DTOC Trajectory

e A ctual

2500

=== Proposed
2000
1500
1000 -
500 -
O | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 1
< < < OWlnoon o no o n W wWOVW O N N N N O 0O O O O
Lo i i i i i i i Lo i i i i i i i i i i Lo
L R N N
o > O © o > O © o > O © o > O © o > O ©




NHS|

Wiltshire

Clinical Commissioning Group

pw Others mm \WCH mmm AWP o SFT mmmm RUH s GWH e P|gn

6T-0°4
6T-uer
8T-23(
8T-AON
8T-190
gT-das
gT-3ny
8T-INf
gT-unf
gT-AeN
gT-4dy
gT-JelN
8T-024
gT-uer
LT-223Q
LT-NON
LT-190
LT-d3s
LT-8ny
LT-INf
LT-unf
LT-AeN
LT-idy
LT-1eN
LT-924
LT-uer
9T-23(Q
9T-AON
9T-190
9T-das
9T-3ny
9T-INf
gT-unr
9T-AeN
9T-4dy

Trend for All Delayed Days by Provider

3000 -
2500 -
2000 -

~——————= Where everybody matters

Wiltshire Council

1500 -

1000 -

500 -
0

Page 47



81 abed

NHS|

Wiltshire Council Wiltshire

i e Lol Clinical Commissioning Group

Trend for All Delayed Days by Acute / Non Acute

1800 -

1600
1400
1200
1000
800
600
400
200
0

Delayed Transfers of Care - Days by Acute & Non Acute

e A CcUte

=== Non Acute




61 abed

Wiltshire Council Wiltshire

Bhesempbsmtion Clinical Commissioning Group

Reason for All Delayed Days

2018-19
il Wit oy | om0
19

Assessment 36.6 53.2 75.8 39.2

Public Funding 10.2 8.0 23.4 6.7 24
Non Acute transfer 299.0 447.3 292.5 278.7 305
Residential home 191.2 301.3 278.2 194.5 133
Nursing home 343.2 378.5 421.2 332.2 340
Dom Care 435.2 795.3 660.5 521.9 401
Equipment/ adaptations 39.8 76.7 96.4 50.5 40
Patient/ family choice 88.0 128.2 190.6 114.1 96
Disputes 9.7 14.0 3.3 6.9 1
Housing 42.8 43.3 39.7 64.0 15
Other 0 0 0 1.8 0




0g abed

Wiltshire Council

~ = Where eve

rybody matters

NHS|

Wiltshire
Clinical Commissioning Group

February NHS DTOC Delayed Days

Wiltshire
GWH 266
RUH 325
SFT 124
AWP 31
WH&C 119
Others 34

84
139
129

56
271

23

182
186

27.9
216.7
133.8

-3.9
-44.6
-56.1

47.8




TG abed

Wiltshire Council L

~—————=_ Where everybody matters

2000 -

1800
1600
1400
1200
1000
800
600
400
200

Wiltshire
Clinical Commissioning Group

Trend for NHS Delayed Days

Wiltshire Provisional BCF NHS DTOC Trajectory Actual
- G ACtUQa
_ == Proposed
¢ ¥ ST 10 ;MmO O O O NIMNININSNO®O® W O © O
RS S U O B B B S
22852285238 85838488%5338 5%




2G abed

Wiltshire Council Wiltshire

e i i e Clinical Commissioning Group

February ASC DTOC Delayed Days

__ O m % of GAP

Wiltshire -1.5
GWH 79 15 64 426.7
RUH 102 35 67 191.4
SFT 57 93 -36 -38.7
AWP 0 56 -56 -100.0
WH&C 145 171 -26 -15.2

Others 0 18 -18 -100.0




Wiltshire Council L

Wiltshire
e i e L Clinical Commissioning Group

Trend for ASC Delayed Days

1400 7 wiltshire Provisional BCF ASC DTOC Trajectory
e A ctual
1200
e Proposed
1000
800
5
& 600
D
& 400
200 -
O I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 1
< < < LN LN LN LN (o} (\o] (o} (o} ™~ ™~ ™~ ™~ (o0] (000} o0 o0 (@)}
R I S S S B - B B B B B B B B B
§385828:38385823385882%3§8 5%




G abed

Wiltshire Council

~——————= Where everybody matters

600

500

400

300

200

100

NHS|

Wiltshire
Clinical Commissioning Group

Trend for GWH Delayed Days

- GWH Provisional BCF DTOC Trajectory =Actual
=== Proposed
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
<t <5 < NN N n OWOWOW O N N N N O OO 0 O
AN B B B B /U v B B
2888385238822 88838¢5




.W w
£ 9
26
S o
S
i)
4
g
g
o
®
o~
S
("]

Wiltshire Council
~——————= Where everybody matters

Trend for GWH Delayed Days

e Actual
=== Proposed

140 - GWH Provisional BCF ASC DTOC Trajectory

120 -~

e Actual
=== Proposed

450 - GWH Provisional BCF NHS DTOC Trajectory

400 ~

350 A
300 A
250 A
200 A
150 -~
100 -
50 A

Page 55




oG abed

NHS|

Wiltshire Council Wiltshire

~——————= Where everybody matters

900
800
700
600
500
400
300
200
100

Clinical Commissioning Group

Trend for RUH Delayed Days

- RUH Provisional BCF DTOC Trajectory =Actual
=== Proposed
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
< < S DN NN O W WO N N N DN OO 0 0 0 O
TR TP ru L P P AN PN A e S PA AL B PU I
S 3 0 $ &8 >3 0 § a3 0 5 a3 0 5 a8 35 o &5
< T O = €« T 0 s €« T 0 5 <« T 0 = <« ™ O =




Wiltshire
joning Group
e Actual
=== Proposed

issioning

| Commi

Inica

I

G

L 6T-uer
L 8T-320
L 8T-nr

L 81-1dv
L 8T-uer
L L1320
wasll)

L LT-1dy

| LT-uer
| 97490
9T

_ 9T-udy
| 9T-uer
| ST490
ST

| ST-udy

L GT-uer
L ¥T-320
sl

yT-1dy

250 ~ RUH Provisional BCF ASC DTOC Trajectory

e Actual
e Proposed

Trend for RUH Delayed Days

200 -
150 -
100 -~
50 -
0

| 6T-uer
| 8T-10
L 8T-Inr
| 8T-udy
| gT-uer
L LT-P0
L LTAnr
| LT-dy
| LT-uef
| 9130
L 9T-Inr
| 9T-udy
| 9T-uer
| ST-0
L GTHINnf
| §T-udy
| GT-uer
| #1390
L yT-nr
yT-1dy

600 - RUH Provisional BCF NHS DTOC Trajectory

~——————= Where everybody matters

Wiltshire Council

500 -
400 -
300 -
200 -
100

Page 57



gG abed

Wiltshire Council Wiltshire

Bhesempbsmtion Clinical Commissioning Group

Trend for SFT Delayed Days

700 o~ SFT Provisional BCF DTOC Trajectory === Actual

== Proposed

600 -

500 -

400 -

300 -

200 -

100 -

0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
gt < < DN N in OO OW LW O N N NN OO O 0 0 O
ARSI B B A S 7 B B B
$285%2385%2385%2388%583¢8%




Wiltshire

Wiltshire Council

Group

issioning

Trend for SFT Delayed Dg;/somm

I

G

~——————= Where everybody matters

e Actual

=== Proposed

el

| 6T-uer
| 8T-00
L 8T-Nr
| 8T-dy
| 8T-uer
L LT-P0
L LTAnr
| LT-ady
| LT-uer
| 9T-10
L 9T-Nnr
L 9T-dy
| 9T-uer
| ST-0
L STANr
| §T-dy
| GT-uer
| ¥T-320
L yTANnr
y1-4dy

450 - SFT Provisional BCF ASC DTOC Trajectory

e Actual

50 -

LA R B N R E—|
o O O O o o o
o n O 1n O wn o
< o n N NOH -
e}
(<]
7
o
Q
o
e
a

LW

| 6T-uer
| 8T-120
L 8T-Inr
| 8T-udy
| gT-uer
L LT-P0
L LTAInr
| LT-1dy
| LT-uef
| 9130
L oT-Inr
| 9T-udy
| 9T-uer
| ST-30
L STHInr
| §T-udy
| GT-uer
| ¥T-320
L yT-Inr
yT-1dy

450 4 SFT Provisional BCF NHS DTOC Trajectory

400 -
350 -
300 -
250 -
200 -
150 A
100 A
50 A

Page 59




09 abed

Wiltshire Council L

Wiltshire
L s s Clinical Commissioning Group

Trend for AWP Delayed Days

AWP Provisional BCF DTOC Trajectory ====Actual

== Proposed

600

500 -

400 -

300 -

200 -

100 -

T
q
i
1
>
=

I I

< LN
— —
W -
O S
O -

|
LN
—
ih
8]
@)

Jul-16 7
Oct-16 ~
Jan-17
Apr-17 °
Jul-17 7
Oct-17 |
Jan-18 7
Apr-18 °
Jul-18 7
Oct-18 °
Jan-19

Jan-16
Apr-16 |

I I
< N N
- N
— —
a S o
<< - <




Wiltshire
Group

Issioning
e Actual
e Proposed

| Commi

Inica

I

G

| 6T-uer
| 8T-10
L 8T-Inr

| 8T-udy
| gT-uer
L LT-30
WAST)

| LT-4dy
| LT-uer
| 9110
L 9T-Nnf

L 9T-4dy
| 9T-uer
| ST-0
L ST

| §T-Jdy
| GT-uer
L ¥T-320
RSy

y1-4dy

600 -~ AWP Provisional BCF ASC DTOC Trajectory

e A ctual

\\/\N\M

Trend for AWP Delayed Days

500 -
400 -
300 -
200 -
100 A
0

| 6T-uer
| 810
L 8T-Inr
| 8T-udy
| 8T-uer
L LT00
L LTANr
| LT-dy
| LT-uer
| 910
L 9T-Inr
. 9T-1dy
| 9T-uer
ﬁ ST-30
L ST-Nr
| GT-dy
| GT-uer
L ¥T1-120
Rasl)
yT-4dy

250 - AWP Provisional BCF NHS DTOC Trajectory

~——————= Where everybody matters

Wiltshire Council

200 A
150 A
100 A
50
0

Page 61



29 abed

Wiltshire Council Wiltshire

WsEmgsion Clinical Commissioning Group

Trend for WH&C Delayed Days

900 - WH&C Provisional BCF DTOC Trajectory —Actual
e Proposed

800 -

700 -

600 -

500 - y,

400 - Y

300 -

200 -

100 -

O I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 1
< <5 < D N N i O wW W O N N NN OO 0 0 0 O
IR B AN BN B N R A
§3888385883855338:383¢8¢%




Wiltshire
Group
Actual

== Proposed

s

issioning

| Commi

Inica

I

G

| 6T-uer
| 8T-30
L 8T-Inr
L 8T-udy
| gT-uer
L LT-30
AR
| LT-dy
| LT-uer
L 9110
L 9T-Inr
| 9T-dy
| 9T-uer
| STP0
L STANr
| GT-dy
| GT-uer
| 190
L vT-nr
y1-4dy

450 - WCH Provisional BCF ASC DTOC Trajectory™

400 -

o= Actual

Trend for WH&C Delayed Days

350 -
300 A
250 A
200 A
150 -
100 -
50 -
0

L 6T-uer
| 81-320
L 8TInf

L 8T-dy
| 8T-uer
L LT-30
L LTHne

WAL
| LT-uer
| 9T-30
L ot-Inr

| 9T-dy
| 9T-uer
| ST-20
L STAne

| GT-dy
| GT-uer
L ¥T1-320
L yTone

yT-1dy

== Proposed

AN St

600 - WCH Provisional BCF NHS DTOC Trajectory

~——————= Where everybody matters

Wiltshire Council

500 -
400 -
300 -
200 -
100
0

Page 63



79 abed

Wiltshire Council Wiltshire

Bhesempbsmtion Clinical Commissioning Group

Benchmarking Performance

Table shows percentage increase or reduction in delayed
days from December to January.

| NWs | AsC__ | Both | Total _

England -4.2 -11.7 -0.4 -6.2
South West -2.9 -15.4 -11.7 -7.3
Statistical

S -5.2 -18.1 -2.8 -8.3
Wiltshire 7.5 3.2 -4 .2 54




G9 abed

Wiltshire Council Wiltshire

i e Lol Clinical Commissioning Group

Benchmarking Performance

This shows the Wiltshire rank nationally, 151 would be the
highest and 1 would be the lowest.

_-E__

July 2018

August 2018 138 113 128
September 2018 129 112 121
October 2018 135 131 138
November 2018 127 120 124
December 2018 110 115 113
January 2019 110 100 112
February 2019 117 108 114




99 abed

NHS|

Wiltshire Council Wiltshire

~—————=_ Where everybody matters

Clinical Commissioning Group

Benchmarking Performance — South West

8000.0
7000.0
6000.0
5000.0
4000.0
3000.0
2000.0
1000.0

0.0

2018-19 (YTD) Delayed Days per 100,000 Population

e S\ Average

BANES

Bournemouth G

Somerset NG

Swindon I

Torbay I

Bristol
Cornwall
Poole NG

Plymouth
Wiltshire

Sth Gloucs I

Nth Somerset

Gloucestershire IIIIEE



/9 abed

Wiltshire Council Wiltshire

Where everybody maters Clinical Commissioning Group

Benchmarking Performance — South West

120000 1 pelayed Days per 100,000 Population
m— 2018-19 (M11)
10000.0 - 2017-18
20000 - e S\\/ Average
2017-18 SW Avg

6000.0 - g
4000.0 -
2000.0 -

0.0 -

BANES
Bristol
Devon
Dorset

Poole

Somerset I
. ]
[

Cornwall
Plymouth
Sth Gloucs
Wiltshire

Gloucestershire I
Nth Somerset




This page is intentionally left blank



69 abed

Better Care Fund Template Q4 2018/19

1. Cover

|VE rsion 1.0 |

Please Note:

- The BCF quarterly reports are categorised as 'Management Information' and are planned for publishing in an aggregated form on the NHSE
website. Narrative sections of the reports will not be published. However as with all information collected and stored by public bodies, all BCF
information including any narrative is subject to Freedom of Information requests.

- As noted already, the BCF national partners intend to publish the aggregated national quarterly reporting information on a quarterly basis. Ata
local level it is for the HWB to decide what information it needs to publish as part of wider local government reporting and fransparency requirements.
Until BCF information is published, recipients of BCF reporting information {including recipients who access any information placed on the BCE) are
prohibited from making this information available on any public domain or providing this information for the purposes of journalism or research
without prior consent from the HWB (where it concerns a single HWB) or the BCF national partners for the aggregated information.

- This template is password protected to ensure data integrity and accurate aggregation of collected information. A resubmission may be required if
this is breached.

Health and WellbeingBoard: . [=0e

T N ony Marvell
L oy Marvell@Wiltshire. gov.uk
) 7756 932703

Who signed off the report on behalf of the Health and Wellbeing Board: Helen Jones and Ted Wilson |

Question Completion - when all questions have been answered and the validation boxes below have turned green you should send the template
to england.bettercaresupport@nhs.net saving the file as '"Name HWB' for example 'County Durham HWB'



0/ abed

Complete

Pending Fields

Cover

. National Conditions & s75 Pooled Budget

. National Metrics

. High Impact Change Model

Income and Expenditure

. Year End Feedback

. Narrative

. improved Better Care Fund: Part 1

oo [~ o [ [ [w[m =

. improved Better Care Fund: Part 2

& e

Department Ministry of Housing,
of Health & Communities &
Social Care Local Government

Local {8

Government

Association

NHS

England

<< Link to Guidance tab

1. Cover
Cell Reference
Health & Wellbeing Board Ca
Completed by: C10
E-mail: C12
Contact number: C14
Who signed off the report on behalf of the Health and Wellbeing Board: Cl6

Sheet Complete:

Checker




T/ obed

2. National Conditions & 575 Pooled Budget A Link Back to top

Checker

Cell Reference
1) Plans to be jointly agreed? 3
2) Social care from CCG minimum contribution agreed in line with Planning Requirements? C9
3) Agreement to invest in NHS commissioned out of hospital services? C10
4) Managing transfers of care? Cl1
1) Plans to be jointly agreed? If no please detail oa
2) Social care from CCG minimum contribution agreed in line with Planning Requirements? Detail o9
3] Agreement to invest in NHS commissioned out of hospital services? If no please detail 010
4) Managing transfers of care? If no pleasze detail D11
Hawve the funds been pooled via 2 5.75 pooled budget? Ci5
Have the funds been pooled via a 5.75 pooled budget? If no, please detail 015
Have the funds been pooled via a 5.75 pooled budget? If no, please indicate when E15
|5heet Complete:
3. Metrics Af Link Back to top

Cell Reference
MEA Target performance D11
Res Admissions Target performance D12
Reablement Target performance 013
OToC Target performance D14
MEA Challenges El1
Res Admissions Challenges E12
Reablement Challenges E13
OToC Challenges Elad
MEA Achievements F11
Res Admissions Achievements F12
Reablement Achievements F13
OToC Achievements F14
MEA Support Needs G11
Res Admissions Support Needs G12
Reablement Support Needs G13
DToC Support Needs G144

Sheet Complete:




2/ obed

4. High Impact Change Madel “Link Backto top

Cell Referen Checker

Chg 1-Early dizcharge planning Q4 1513

12

Chg 2 - Suztems to manitar patient low 04 1513 513
Chg 3 - Multi-dizciplinare'multi-agency discharge teams Q4 1613 514
Chg 4 - Home firstidischarge to assess 04 1513 515
Chg 5 - Seven-day service 04 15113 16
Chg B - Trusted assessors Q4 1313 G17
Chg 7 - Focus on choice 04 1313 513
Chg 8 - Enhancing health in care homes Q4 18113 =13
LEC - Bed Bag scheme Q4 18113 G23
Chg 1- Early dizcharge planning. if Mature or Evemplary please explain H1z
Chg 2 - Sustem:s to manitar patient low , if Mature or Eremplary please explain H13
Chg 3 - Multi-dizciplinary!agency discharge teams, it Mature or Exemplary ple ase explain Hid
Chg 4 - Home firstidischarge to assess, if Mature or Eremplary please exsplain H1S
Chg 5 - Sever—day service, if Mature or Evemplary please enplain HIE
Chg B - Trusted assessors., if Mature or Eremplary please explain H1G
Chg 7 - Focus on choice, if Mature or Exemplary please explain H17
Chg 8 - Enhancing health in care homes, i Mature or Ezemplary please explain H13
LEC - Bed Bag scheme. if Mature or Exemplar please explain HZ3
Chg 1- Early dizcharge planning Challenges 112
Chg 2 - Sustem:s to manitar patient flow Challenges (]
Chg 3 - Multi-dizciplinare'multi-agency discharge teams Challenges 11
Chg 4 - Home firstidizcharge to assess Challenges s
Chg 5 - Seven-day semice Challenges (1=
Chg 6 - Trusted assessors Challenges 17
Chg 7 - Focus on choice Challenges 13
Chg 8 - Enhancing health in care homes Challenges 113
LEC - Bed Bag Scheme Challenges 123
Chg1-Early dizcharge planning Additional achievements J12
Chg 2 - Sustem:s to monitor patient low Additional achievements J13
Chg 3 - Multi-dizciplinare’multi-agency discharge teams Additional achievements J1d
Chg 4 - Home firstidizcharge to assess Additional achievements J15
Chg 5 - Seven-day semice Additional achievements J1E
Chg 6 - Trusted assessars Additional achievements J17
Chg 7 - Focus on choice Additional achievements J18
Chg & - Enhancing health in care homes Additional achievements J13
LEC - Bed Bag Scheme Additional achievements J23
Chag1-Early dizscharge planning Support needs K12
Chg 2 - Sustems to monitar patient low Support needs K13
Chg 3 - Multi-dizciplinara'multi-agency dizcharge teams Support needs k14
Chg 4 - Home firstidizcharge to assess Support needs KIS
Chg 5 - Seven-day semice Support needs K16
Chg 6 - Trusted assessars Support needs K17
Chg 7 - Focus on choice Support needs K15
Chg & - Enhancing health in care homes Support needs k13
LEC - Bed Bag Scheme Suppoart needs k23

[Sheet Complete:



¢) abed

5. Income and Expenditure

A% Link Back to top

Cell Reference  |Checker

Do you wish to change your additional actual CCG funding? Gl4
Do you wish to change your additional actual LA funding? 15
Actual CCG Add H14
Actual LA Add H15
Income commentary D21
Do you wish to change your BCF actual expenditure? E2B
Actual Expenditure C30
Expenditure commentary D32

Sheet Complete:

6. Year End Feedback

A% Link Back to top

Cell Reference  |Checker

Statement 1. Delivery of the BCF has improved joint working between health and social care C10
Statement 2: Our BCF schemes were implemented as planned in 2018/19 C11
Statement 3: Delivery of BCF plan had a positive impact on the integration of health and social care Cl2
Statement 4: Delivery of our BCF plan has contributed positively to managing the levels of NEAs C13
Statement 5: Delivery of our BCF plan has contributed positively to managing the levels of DToC Cl4a
Statement &: Delivery of our BCF plan thas contributed positively to managing reablement C15
Statement 7: Delivery of our BCF plan has contributed positively to managing residential admissions |[C16
Statement 1 commentary D10
Statement 2 commentary D11
Statement 3 commentary D12
Statement 4 commentary D13
Statement 5 commentary 014
Statement 6 commentary D15
Statement 7 commentary Dle
Success ] c22
Success 2 C23
Success 1 commentary D22
Success 2 commentary D23
Challenge 1 C26
Challenge 2 c27
Challenge 1 commentary D26
Challenge 2 commentary D27

Sheet Complete:;




v/ abed

7. Narrative “* Link Back totop

Cell Referen Checker

Frogress against logal plan For integration of health and sowial care

Bz

Integration success skory highlight owver the past quarker

=]

[ Sheet Complete:

& Additional improved Better Care Fund: Part 1 “* Link Back totop

Cell Refere

A1] Do you wish ko revise the percentages provided at Q113192 Ci4
A2] a] Fewised meeting adult social care needs o7
221 b] Fevised reducing pressures on the NHS E17

A2] ] Bewised ensuring that the local social care provider market is supported Fi7

A3 Suceess 1 C23
A3 Success 2 023
A3 Sucoess 3 E&3
A4] Other commentary 1 C24
A4] Other commentary 2 024
Ad4] Other commentary 3 E24
A5] Commentary 1 C26
A5 Commentary 2 [medi]
AA] Commentary 3 E25
£E] Challenge 1 [met]
AE] Challenge 2 et
£E] Challenge 3 EZd
A7] Other commentary 1 C23
A7) Other commentary 2 023
A7) Other commentary 3 E23
A8 Commentary 1 30
A3 Commentary 2 030
A8 Commentary 3 E30
E1] Initative 1: Frogress a7
B} Initative 2: Progress 037
E1] Initative 3 Progress E37
B} Initative 4: Progress Fav
E1] Initative & Progress Ga7
B} Initative B: Progress H37
B} Initative ¥: Progress 137

B} Initative 8: Progress Ja37
B} Initative 9: Progress K37
E1] Initative 10: Frogress L37
B2] Initative 1: Commentary C38
E2] Initakive 2: Commentary [mcd]
B2] Initative 3: Commentary E38
E2] Initative 4: Commentary F3a
B2] Initative 5: Commentary G3g
B:2] Initative B: Commentary H3g
B2] Initative 7: Commentary 138

B2] Initative 8: Commentary J3g
E&] Initakive 3: Commentary et
B2] Initative 10: Commentary L3g

[ Sheet Complete:




G, abed

9. Additional improved Better Care Fund: Part 2 Ar Link Back to top

Cell Reference
C1) a) Actual number of home care packages C11
C1) b) Actual number of hours of home care D11
C1) c) Actual number of care home placements E11
C2) Main area spent on the addition iBCF funding allocation for 2018/19 c12
C3) Main area spent on the addition iBCF funding allocation for 2018/19 - Commentary C13
Metric 1: D1} Additional Metric Mame C20
Metric 2: D1) Additional Metric Name D20
Metric 3: D1) Additional Metric Mame E20
Metric 4: D1) Additional Metric Mame F20
Metric 5: D1) Additional Metric Name G20
Metric 1: D2) Metric category C21
Metric 2: D2) Metric category D21
Metric 3: D2) Metric category E21
Metric 4: D2) Metric category F21
Metric 5: D2) Metric category G21
Metric 1: D3) If other category, then detail c22
Metric 2: D3) If other category, then detail D22
Metric 3: D3) If other category, then detail E22
Metric 4: D3) If other category, then detail F22
Metric 5: D3) If other category, then detail 522
Metric 1: D4) Metric performance C23
Metric 2: D4) Metric performance D23
Metric 3: D4) Metric performance E23
Metric 4: D4) Metric performance F23
Metric 5: D4) Metric performance 523

Sheet Complete:

Checker




9, abed

Better Care Fund Template Q4 2018/19

2. National Conditions & s75 Pooled Budget

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: |Wiltshire |

Confirmation of Nation Conditions

If the answer is "No" please provide an explanation as to why the condition was not met within the

National Condition Confirmation quarter and how this is being addressed:
1) Plans to be jointly agreed?

(This also includes agreement with district councils on use
of Disabled Facilities Grant in two tier areas)

2) Planned contribution to social care from the CCG
minimum contribution is agreed in line with the Planning
Requirements?

3) Agreement to invest in NHS commissioned out of
hospital services?

4) Managing transfers of care?

Confirmation of 575 Pooled Budget

If the answer to the above is
If the answer is "No" please provide an explanation as to why the condition was not met within the 'No'please indicate when this
Statement Response quarter and how this is being addressed: will happen (DD/MM/YYYY)

Have the funds been pooled via a 5.75 pooled budget?




/] abed

Better Care Fund Template Q4 2018/19

Metrics

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: ['wiltshire |

Challenges  Please describe any challenges faced inmeeting the planned target

Achievements Please describe any achievements, impact obsemved ar lessons learnt when considering improvement s being pursued for the respective metrics
Support Need Fleaze highlight anu support that may facilitate or eaze the achievements of metric plans

Re=s
Admissions

Reablement

Delayed
Transkers of
Care

Azzezsment of Challenges Achievements Support Ne
progress against
the planned target
The first 3 months of the year have zeen activity at Auvoidable Emergency admizsions are |Mone
similar levels to those seen at the end of 2007-18, this | still at the lower levels seenin 2017-15.
Mot ontrack to meet iz mainly shart stay admissions and reflects 2 change | Admizzsions avoidance schemes are
L2ge in coding practice at one of the local trusts. The under review as part of 2003020 plan.
challenge af reducing admizsions is one actively being
K.eeping people at home for as long as possible Taend of February, we have seen 323 |Mone
represents a challenge to the system azinthe short- | new permanent admissions to care
term thiz iz likely to require additional demicilliary care | homes., if this can be sustained it
provision. Far the medium-term prevention, iz a pricrity | represents a further significant
A focus for Wiltshire to enable people ta remain at home | reduction on previous wears.
az independently as possible for az long as possible.
Examples af this can be seen in projects funded by the
BCF tareduce zocial isolation, meet health needs
closer to home to include support for carers,
Bctivity and outcomes are lower than espected but are | Simplifving the discharge pathwaus MNorne
expected to improve through the vear as the new has helped us achieve a better
dizcharge pathw aus become embedded acrass the  |understanding of patient needs and
Mot ontrack o meet sustem. 'w'e continue to work with our provider to enszure that people receive the right
target ensure we improve the autcomes and reporting for suppart in the community,
these zemices.
Continuing high levels of demand for care at home. we continue ta see that the number af |Maone

ot on track ko meet
target

‘We have developed new approaches to discharge
and reablement to pravide a further impetus to
reductions.

delaved days are lower than the
number in 2017-13, a=s existing and
rew initiatives continue to deliver
though we remain abowe our target.
‘we have reduced OTOC by 255 when
compared to a vear ago, and
redesigned and recommissioned our
help ta live at home service taincrease
capacity of care available in the




stter Care Fund Template Q4 20181

4. High Impact Change Model

Zelected Health and Wellbeing Board: | wWiltzhire |

Challenges Pleaze deseribe the kew challenges Faced by your zyztem in the implementation of thiz change
Milestones met during the guarter § Obsq Please describe the milestones met in the implementation of the change or describe any observed impact of the implemented changs
Zupport Need:=s Pleaze indicate anyg suppork Ehat mag Better Facilitate ar accelerake the implementation of thiz change

Harratire

g,) abed

IF "Mature” or "Exemplary’,

a1 1813 a2 1813 IR f R (LA please provide Farther Challenges L e o (i d.".-g e Zupport seeds
[Current] [Currest] n - quarter § Dbzerved impact
ratiomale to support this
Dizcharge proceszes and teams are
well eskablizhed. Dizcharge planning
commences immediately for At A R
Mature Mature Mature Mlature patientslservice users through MOT Qwerall shared T systems High impact model alignment Man:
working. Thiz iz evidenced by the
CRIC review in Summer 2015,
MIDCE has now been implemented
2 S’s.tt-s to masitor Eztablizhed | Eztablizhed | Establizhed | Makure: Erass most efflie EpEEED adlcel- Owerall zhared T zyztems Nr..uw o of.all Bresideizlboaltis Mane
patient flow aut plan iz in place to put in place Mlidos tool in use.
Mideos across all providers
Lack of single management struckures A Full review of Intermediabe care is
Eztablizhed | Establizhed | Establizhed | Establizhed #ing a9 h " underway e improve step up, step Mone
focussed an the individual.
dawn, and Length of stay
Dizcharge processes and keams are o redesigned reablement structure Fleab-l.-:rn-:nt service has mI::.-.- been f:.:llg.l
well establizhed. Dizcharge planning | A redesigned, and brought Yin-house™.
. . . . iz now fully aperational, and has been . .
- Home Firstldizcharge to . commences immediately far Thera has been a carrelation with the
Chg 4 Establizhed | Pature Mlature Mlature X . further strengthened by our new N Mane
® 7 assess patientsiservice uzers through MOT i g Y launch of bokh new services and
. LT HomeFirstPlus service which is now . : .
working. This iz evidenced by the alse operational suzkained good improvement in
CEC review in Eummer 2015, 3 op DTOC performance.
Fome providers are not accepting
Planz in efiergelln & Caaail, e Zocial workers are now available T
5 Sevem-day service Ia-:; Establizhed | Establizhed | Established arrangements are being reviewed bo davs 3 week b Mane
F enzure that thiz can take place to s :
improve Flow.
The trusted assessment model iz 10
place acrosz Intermediate Care, A
new approach bo the design of Trusted Aszezsment processes
Trusked Assessment is in place with implemented across all three Acutes.
Trazted azseszors Establizhed | Establizhed | Establizhed | Established praviders "owning” the design of the Mow need ko agree the role, function, | Mone
Trusted Azszessment Function, and hasting arrangemants for the
‘whilzt thiz iz proving more cffective | Trusked Assessor(s].
and haz a greaker chance of delivering
BT g i o 1 g
Mew Chaice policy bazed on nakional b!" .chc-lc-: ard pr.ofessl.c-nals having 'ﬁ'hna.l!'ltlnl a;al!'lfﬂTl n;elinon-::trat;s l:!nt
template haz been implemented difficult conversations with people choice a2 a2 of all delays is reducing.
Chg T Focus on choice Establizhed | Establizhed | Establizhed | Mature wcrozs all brusts and services and thic wha uze services haz improved in the Mead to conclude work in reviewing Mlaone
iz impacting pasitively on delays. last n:!uarter, but. remains higher lfh:m iz | the _5'-Ip-plltr arrangement in the next
poszible. A& review of the supplier period.
LR == L
capacity due to workforce challenges.
'fl'hcdmarlEet;sD;;mllznat-:d.bg,! el y Mew whilkzhire wide Woaorkfarce group
Enbamcing health in care A " " . uders . - L OMMISSIONTS Ra¥e (|- now been intraduced to solution
homes Eztablizhed | Establizhed | Establizhed | Established had I;I.Ig man:;lge somt-mh“ktt f.zllures same of the common workforee Man:
["!T::' care O":":"] s proviaers izzues across the county.
failing ta recruit staff of sufficient
calibre to maintain quality.




6/ abed

Hoszpital Transfer Protocol [or the Red Bag scheme]
Flease report on implemnentation of & a e 'Fed Ba £ enha nrmnication and informal

implement such a scheme.

34 1819 please provide a narrative on
[Current] alternative mitigations in place
to support improved

communications in hospital

Q11813 Q218N Q3 18N13

Challenges Achievements ! Impact Support needs

Dezign phase and POSA cucles have

row completed, as part of the averall Mone - good support already provided
CATHEDRAL project. Redbags areto  |bu Diana Porter [NHSE)

intraduced in the nest quarter,

Planzin Planzin Planzin

LIEC
dEt Ry E e e aaTs establizhed |place place place

Fedbagnatintroduced




Better Care Fund Template Q4 2018/19

5. Income and Expenditure

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: |Wiluhire

Disab £ 3,033,313
P i £ 7,210,533
£ 29,011,258
b Tota £ 39,255,105
. £ 2219742 additional actual CCG
g ok £ 4,249 540 additional actual LA
(@] Bdditic b Ta £ 6,469,382
D L
o Planned 18/1% Actual 18/19
o

Total BCF Pooled Fund £ 45724487 | £ 47,134,285

Do you wish to change your

£

2,764,251

Do you wish to change your

£

5,114,929

£

7,879,180

A [oE ARl R Ty P T e IO EVR R Minor adjustments in year.
useful for local context where there is a
difference between planned and actual

income for 2018/19

o L
£ 45724128

Do you wish to change your actual BCF expenditure? Yes

Actual £ 47154,285

A= Rl - Ty P I g e I O VRl Vinor adjustments in year.
useful for local context where there is a
difference between the planned and

actual expenditure for 2018/19




T8 obed

pelier Lare Fund emplate L34 LN 1t
6. Tear End Feedback

Eelected Health and Wellbeing Board: [ ilkshire

Part 1: Delivery of the Better Care Fund

Etrongly Agres

In line with BECF we have now developed co-dependant governance structures where arganization boundaries have bec

Agrie

‘whilst schemes were implemented as planned, more atkention in 200320 will be given to benefits realization and meas

Agree

The plan has supported the wery significant decrease in DTOC which iz down by 25% fram a year ago.

Agree

Our Admizsions avacidance activities have help to keep the non elective admizsions rates in the kop 10 CCG areas acro)

Etrongly Agrec

A combination of the BCF schemes, and revized integrated governance have had a direct impact on the improvement o

Agree

Thraugh our Urgent care at Home scheme we have been able bo maintain improvement over the course of the year [ME ¢

Agree

ECF zchemes, and Focial Care driven skrategics to keep people at or az close bo home: a5 possible have been successf

Part 2: Successes and Challenges
ECIE Logi

2. Ztrong, system-wide governance
and syskems leadership

Following changes to the System Leadership arrangements in 2015 2 concentrated effort was placed on the overhaul o

&. Pooled or aligned resources

Diuring the year the major spstem wide change was the redesign, decommizzioning, and recommizzioning of the reablem




28 abed

4, Outlin 2
the enable inkegrat] I ad j = al SCIE Ls el Enablers,
mcdel] i

y: Fezponse - Pleaze detail your greatest challenges

Ewery arganisation within the health and care system i= struggling with recruiting and retaining enough staff
due b a wariety of reasons described in the Following documents.

The increaszing demand For services together with the reduction in the number of people of working age
means health and social care employers are Facing greater competition For those staff recruited locally.
Fecent Office of Mational Statistics data shows that those unemployed has reduced from 4.1 in 2014 1o the
present rate of 3.1, Mational issues are alzo having an impact: for example, the implications of the potential
changes to European immigration status have made recruitment of registered professionals such as nurses
fram abroad more difficult, as has the high bar for passing the English language tests, a requirement for
professional registration for international applicants. The rurality of some areas in Wilkzhire bring their own
challenges a= they require skaff to hawe their own transport inorder bo access employment.

1. Local contestual Factors (2.,
financial health, funding
arrangements, demographics,
urban ws rurual Factors)

Challenge 1

Ewery arganization within the whale health and social care system is struggling with recruiting and retaining
encugh staff due tathe changes described above despite their best effarts. The staff groups most
constrained are Registered Murses, some specialities of Doctaor [including GP?s] and Domiciliary Support
‘workers [Carers and Health Care Assistants). Whilst this shortage is present now the mature age of our
workborce will increase the pressure in the nest few years. For esample, 2239 of our GP workforce is over 55
years old and 323 of our GP Mursing workforce, The present shortage of staff is particularly severa in
Oomiciliary Care serdices where turnover of direct care staff is on average approzimately 382 We have

3. Integrated electronic records
Challenge 2 and sharing across the system
with service users

Al the current time we are not widely sharing records amongst professionals because of limitiations with
exizting systems, and the current implemenation of the new Liquid Logic system.

Footnotes:

Cluestion 8, 9 and 10 are should be as=igned to one of the following categqories:

1. Lo:al contextual Factors [e.q. financial health, funding arrangements, demographics, urban vs rurual Factors)
2. Strong, system-wide governance and systems leadership

3. Integrated electronic records and sharing across the system with service users

4 Empowering users to have choice and contral through an asset based approach, shared decision making and co-production
B Integrated workforce: joink approach botraining and upskilling of workforce

E. Good quality and sustainable provider market that can meet demand

7. Joined-up regulatory approach

8. Pooled or aligned resources

9. Joint commizsioning of health and =ocial care

Oither



cq abed

Better Care Fund Template Q4 2018/19

8. Additional improved Better Care Fund: Part 1

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: [wiltshire |

Additional improved Better Care Fund Allocation for 2018/19: £ 5,139,745 |

Distribution of 2018/19 Additional iBCF funding by purpose
Ar Q1 18/19, it was reported that your additional 2018-19 iBCF funding would be allocated across the three purposes for which it was intended as follows:

b) Reducing pressures
on the NHS, including
supporting more people c) Ensuring that the
to be discharged from local social care
a) Meeting adult social hospital when they are provider market is
ready supported
[Percentages shown in these cells are automatically populated based on Q1
18719 return):

Al) Do you wish to revise the percentages provided
at 01 18/19 as shown above? Please select "Yes"

or "No" using the drop-down options:

b) Reducing pressures
on the NHS, including
supporting more people c) Ensuring that the If submitting revised
to be discharged from local social care figures, percentages
a) Meeting adult social hospital when they are provider market is must sum to 100%
ready supported exactly
AZ2) If you have answered "Yes' to Question Al, please enter the revised amount for
each purpose as a percentage of the additional iBCF funding you have been
allocated for the whole of 2018/19. If the expenditure covers more than one
purpose, please categorise it according to the primary purpose. You should ensure
that the sum of the percentage figures entered totals to 100% exactly. If you have
not designated any funding for a particular purpose, please enter 0% and do not
leave a blank cell. If you have answered "Mo" to Question Al, please leave
these cells blank.




78 abed

Successes and challenges associated with additional iBCF

A3] Please use the options provided to
identify your 3 kev areas of success
associated with the additional iBCF
funding during 2D1Bf13

Ad] If you have answered Question A3
with ‘Other’, please specify. P
uze mare than 50 characters

AS) ¥ou can add some brief commentary
on your key successes if you wish. Pleasze
da niok Lse mare than

AB) Please use the options provided to
identify your 3 key areas of challenge
associated with the additional |BEF
funding dunng 201813, H:

AT) If you have answered Question AG
with "Other’, please speclfy Pl do miot
uze more than S0 characters

A8] You can add some brief commentary
on yuur key successes if yuu wish. Pleasze
ot Lse more than 21

Reablement

Tackllng capaclty withir
the local care market

Health and social care
integration

The I-BCF funding has
uged to support the
transfarmationire-
design of reablement
and other lined

[-BCF funding has
enabled the
transformation of
semices across Sdult
Social Care and across

the Health and Social

senices. i

Care interface.
Challenge 1 Challenge 2 Challenge 3
Tackling capacity within
the local care market ‘warkforee - recruitment | Managing demand

Provider capacity has
beenimproved recently
through the introduction
of the Domeare
Alliance, the number of
awailable working age
adultz in Wilkshire
remains a challenge

Wacancy rates remain
challenging across the
sustem, particularly in
the South af the
County. Mew warkfarce
group is now in place.

Much waork hias been
done to manage
demand for statutory
semnices, however
expected demographic
growth will continue to
be a challenge for the
Wwiltzhire Sustem




Gg abed

[Gection B

Door

Project title (automatically populated based on Q1
18/19 return):

and Procurement

Reablement

safeguarding

Initiative / Project 5
Prevention

Initiative / Proj

Initiative / Project 10

1. Capacity:
capacity

s Increasing

Project category (autom ed based on
01 18/19 return)

4. HIC: High Impact
Change

12. Protection

11. Prevention

B1) If a project title is shown in either of the two rows
bbove, use the drop-down options provided or type in
pne of the following options to report on progress to

In progress: showing
no longer being implemented resulis

In progress: showing
results

Completed

In progress: showing
results

In progress: showing
results

B2) You can add some brief commentary on your

projects if you wi: a o not use more than 200




9g abed

Better Care Fund Template Q4 2018/19

9. Additional improved Better Care Fund: Part 2

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: |Wi|t5hire |

Additional improved Better Care Fund Allocation for 2018/19: [£ 5,139,743 |

We want to understand how much additional capacity you have been able to purchase / provide in 2018-19 as a direct result of your additional iBCF funding allocation for 2018-19 and, where the iBCF has not provided any such additionality,
to understand why this is the case. Recognising that figures will vary across areas due to wider budget and service planning assumptions, please provide the following:

a) The number of home care b} The number of hours of home care c) The number of care home

packages provided in 2018/19 as a provided in 2018/19 as a result of  placements for the whole of

result of your addition iBCF funding your additional iBCF funding 2018/19 as a result of your

allocation allocation additional iBCF funding allocation

C1) Provide figures on the actual number of home
care packages, hours of home care and number of
care home placements you purchased [/ provided
as a direct result of your additional iBCF funding
allocation for 2018-19. The figures you provide
should cover the whole of 2018-19. Please use
whole numbers with no text, if you have a nil

entry please enter 0 in the appropriate box.

C2) If you have not increased the number of
packages or placements, please indicate the main

area that you have spent the addition iBCF funding

allocation for 2018/19_ Howver over this cell to view
the comment box for the list of options if the drop-
down menu is not visible.

C3) if you have answered C2 with 'Other’, please
specify. Please do not use more than 50

characters.




/g8 abed

Section D

Metrics used locally to aszess impact of additional iBCF Funding 2018119

&t 011819 it

Metric [aL ) populated ba

L1 AGOIUONal MEerc Name
IF the cell aboye 1= blank. you can
provide details of an additional
metric. IF you did not submit any
metrics at Q1 1819, pleasze ensure
vou have provided detail= of at least
one metric. You can provide details
of up to b metrics in total based on
vour combined 1 1819 and G4 1819
returns e_g. if vou submitted 3
metrics at O1 1819, vou can submit

an additional 2 metrics. Fl

e = 71~ —
IL:'L] I d IEUIC 13 S Einrer w

the two rows above, use the drop-
down menu provided or type in one
of the categories listed to indicate

'‘Other’. pleasze specify. Pls

rnore than 50 ck
L'3] 11 d Inieuic FrIUWT dUUYE, USE
the drop-down options provided or
type in one of the Following options
to report on the overall direction of
travel during the reporting year:

eported that the following rmetric

woLld be uzed locallw to
1

Mumber of care packages

Interrnediate Care Bed

the irmpact of the additional iIECF funding. [Metrica are autornati

ketric 3

Permanent Admissions to

cally popul ated based on O7 1
Peletric 4

% of people dizcharged to
rehabilitation who are still at

19 return)
ketric B

Delaved Transfers of Care

provided Adrizzions Flacernent Care e e
DTOCDischarge Capacity - Residential & DTOCDI scharge DTOCDischarge
Mursing Care
Improvernent Irprovernent Improvernent Improvernent Improvernent




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

Thursday 23 May 2019

Subject: Wiltshire Mental Health Crisis Care Update

Purpose of Report

1. This report presents an overview of crisis care developments in Wiltshire. The
report provides an update on the delivery of care for those experiencing a
mental health crisis, priority areas and the progressive partnerships across
the system together to provide and improve the effectiveness of crisis care for

local people.
Background
2. Members will recall that a presentation was given at the Health and Well

Being Board in October 2018, updating them on this work programme. Key
partners, including police, providers, commissioners etc of the Wiltshire and
Swindon Crisis Care Concordat have committed to providing routine updates
to the Health and Wellbeing Board, as per the agreed directives.

This report gives an update on the complex ongoing work to ensure robust
interfaces and collaborative working practices for services supporting the
crisis care pathway; to ensure the highest quality of care for these service
users, through the provision of responsive and effective crisis care in
Wiltshire.

Main Considerations
3.1 Wiltshire & Swindon Crisis Care Concordat

The Wiltshire & Swindon Crisis Care Concordat continues to take place on a
guarterly basis. The refreshed focus, incorporating workshop style discussions has
led to the development of an effective action plan overview. The Concordat structure
continues to enable cross-provider crisis care pathway developmental discussions;
initial key focus areas and action plan themes include:

. CAMHs transition; the CCG are leading a piece of work to ensure robust
monitoring of inpatient transitions, as well as community transitions between
CAMHs and adult mental health services. This piece of work will result in an
agreed CCG-provider Transition protocol which will be contractually embedded
to ensure adherence; expected completion Q3 19/20.

. Dual Diagnosis; continued pathway development between AWP and Turning
Point, regarding joint working practices. The Concordat will facilitate the

Page 89



extension of this pathway to incorporate its wider partners, including Police,
SWAFT and the Acute General Hospitals. Expected completion Q3 19/20.

. Prevention; Development of Crisis avoidance protocols and pathways.
Expected completion Q4 19/20.

CCG and AWP Strategic Leads for BSW (Acting Director for Mental Health, Maternity
and Children, and BSW Clinical Director, respectively) now attend the overarching
Avon, Somerset & Wiltshire Crisis Care Concordat, ensuring our developing local
action plan can be aligned to the overarching prioritised work plan, and local
developments and issues can be reflected and prioritised within at scale work

3.2 Place of Safety Activity

Wiltshire place of safety activity (captured from the period of January the 1st through
to the 31st of March 2019), is presented in appendix 1. Comparably to the previous
update there have been 10 fewer Wiltshire PoS assessments during this report period;
38. The activity rate has been more variable through Jan-March, with activity tending
to increase towards the end of the working week; this echoes the trend observed in
the previous report, however a spike on Sundays was also evident which has now
subsided. Higher rates of activity occurred between 9pm-9am; again the previous
report mirrored this, although also saw an increase between 12-3pm which has
ceased. Conveyance to the PoS continues to predominantly be completed by the
Police, and joint Police and Ambulance conveyance; an improving position has been
observed regarding with approximately 70% of 136s being conveyed via Ambulance
in March 2019, whereas an average of 20% was observed 12 months ago. The
majority of assessments are completed in between 12-24hours of admission to the
PoS, with one breach.

3.3 East Place of Safety Evaluation Update

The evaluation report is currently with NHS England for review and determination of
the next steps. The CCG hopes to be able to provide a comprehensive update on the
outcomes and next steps following the NHS E review within the next update report. In
the interim, oversite of the temporary centralisation of the East places of safety will
continue through the BSW AWP contract and performance meetings, and with an
operational focus, through the Concordat.

3.4 BaNES & Wiltshire Crisis Accommodation

In recognition of addressing a noted crisis pathway gap, BaNES and Wiltshire CCGs
have supported funding to enable continuation of this pilot with Rethink, for a further a
6month period; Swindon CCG will progress with local arrangements.

The resource has been slightly altered, reducing the accommodation to three crisis
beds, located at Herbert House, Salisbury. Evidence is already demonstrating
alleviation of inpatient delayed transfer of care pressures, positive feedback from
service users and admission and homelessness avoidance. A full evaluation to
determine the system wide impact for this resource will be completed in Q3, this will
inform future commissioning.

Page 90



3.5 High Intensity User —

The High Intensity User Network is a national programme overseen by NHS England.
A number of areas have signed up to this initiative which is designed to bring both
health and police professionals together to work with high intensity service users who
are displaying challenging, complex and high risk behaviour.

The local model is called the Police & Health Integrated Mentoring scheme (PHIM),
and the PHIM officer works with the relevant local care coordinator from the
Community Mental Health Teams (CMHT) to help support the service user and
ultimately reduce demand placed on services. The model is not about duplicating
effort and the care coordinator maintains responsibility for providing healthcare and
support to the service user. The PHIM officer brings a different skillset, setting
appropriate boundaries for the service user, the aim being to reduce their challenging
behaviour. The ethos is very much two different agencies bringing together different
skills and abilities in order to provide the service user with the support needed to
improve their behaviour and welfare.

Currently there is one PHIM officer working in the South Wiltshire locality and a second
PHIM officer to cover North Wilts has just been appointed. Both of these posts are
currently funded by Wiltshire Police.

The PHIM officer in the south of the county has worked alongside the CMHT with a
number of service users who have placed demand on several agencies, including
police, mental health services, Emergency Departments and the Ambulance service
to name just a few. Specific case studies have already highlighted considerable
success, not just in a reduction in demand placed on services but importantly in the
improvement of the wellbeing of the service user. For service users, examples of such
success include halting their offending behaviour, rebuilding relationships with families
and living more fulfilling lives with new housing and employment opportunities. The
benefits for agencies have included a reduction in demand on their services, including
a reduction in the number of calls as well as a reduction/elimination in the number of
bed-days for the service user.

Within NHS England the High Intensity User Programme is being supported by the
Academic Health Science Network (AHSN) and the local West of England service is
currently supporting the PHIM officers to conduct an evaluation of the scheme so far
and this will be completed by the end of the summer. With the support of the AHSN
the intention is to also introduce a third PHIM officer to cover the Swindon locality.

3.6 BaNES, Swindon & Wiltshire Place of Calm Café Update

Wiltshire CCG continue to work in partnership with Alabare to develop and progress
the project plan for the Salisbury based Place of Calm. The PoC is anticipated to
operate across seven days (Core service hours, plus extended OOH opening; hours
to be determined through engagement with individuals with lived experience to ensure
optimal provision, anticipated to be 9am — lam). Alabare have suitable premises,
which require conversion from its current purpose to provide a safe, therapeutic and

Page 91



psychologically informed environment. The site identified is already a safe space,
registered under Wiltshire Council Safe Places scheme.

The PoC will be established as a multi-agency hub to provide those requiring any level
of support to divert MH crisis escalation or maintain their post-crisis recovery journey;
this will enable partnership working and integration between statutory and non-
statutory services. The model has been co-designed with people with lived experience
and key stakeholders including the police, AWP clinical staff, GPs and third sector
representatives. It is intended that the PoC will have provision for confidential meeting
spaces, as well as providing a functional café space where social inclusion will be
promoted through a range of regular activities and events, as well as through the day
to day provision of a welcoming, non-judgmental, supportive and understanding
space.

It was intended for the implementation steering group to progress during Q3 1819,
however owing to delay in the availability of the funding with the Department of Health
this has been postponed, and will now commence during Q1 1920, as funding has
now be reaffirmed. A phased implementation plan will be developed, with an initial
launch intended during Q3 1920.

3.7 Learning Disabilities & Autism Crisis Pathway Review

Following several complex crisis cases, there is agreement for BSW-BNSSG LD/ASD
crisis pathway review, with the objective of reconfiguring the pathway, and possibly
services to address service pressures, perceived pathway gaps and to improve the
overall patient journey during times of crisis. The review methodology is currently
being drafted by Wiltshire CCG, who will lead this piece of work; review expected
completed Q4 19/20. Interim updates will be provided to the Health and Wellbeing
Board, along with the formal review report following completion.

This work will be undertaken in conjunction with colleagues from Wiltshire Council as
part of the new Whole Life Pathway FACT work stream.

4.0 Conclusions

The Members are asked to note this update paper.

Page 92



Appendix 1: Wiltshire AWP Place of Safety Data, Jan-March 2019

MR2a - Number of Place of Safety stays, by week (i)

06Jan 20Jan O3 Feb 17Feb 03 Mar 17 Mar 31 Mar

MR2b - Day of Week Arrival Profile

®

Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

12

MR2 - Number of Detainees by time
detained (i)

9pm - 12am
6pm - 9pm
3pm - 6pm
12pm - 3pm
9am - 12pm
6am - 9am
3am - 6am
12am - 3am




MR1c - Number of detainees by POS by CCG

40

30

20

10+

External Green Lane Mason Unit

MR12 - Means of conveyance

Police

Other

AWP Transport
Ambulance and Police

[Not Recorded]

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

MR10 - Time to assessment

25+
20
15

10 -

Il NHS WILTSHIRE CCG

0-4hr 4-9hr 9-12hr 12-24hr

Page 94



Agenda Item 9

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board
23 May 2019

Subject: Home Office consultation on a new legal duty to support a multi-agency
approach to preventing and tackling serious violence

Executive Summary

On 1 April, the Home Office launched a consultation on a new legal duty to support a
multi-agency approach to preventing and tackling serious violence. Consultees are
asked to consider three options which are set out below.

The consultation document stresses that a successful approach to tackling serious
violence will depend on a coherent and effective multi-agency response to tackling
and preventing harm. In Wiltshire, the strength of our local partnerships has meant we
are already working innovatively across agencies to ensure a public health approach
to tackling violent crime, led by the Community Safety Partnership.

The strength of our collective response to violent crime is demonstrated in our draft
response to this consultation, which is included below for the consideration of the
Health and Wellbeing Board.

Proposal(s)
It is recommended that the Board:

i) Supports the draft response to the Home Office consultation included
below
ii) Recognises the ambitious and forward-looking nature of our approach to

ensuring that our partnership working is effective

i) Agrees that, by developing our own local response, we will be able to
ensure our system meets local needs and that it uses our combined
resources intelligently

iv) Asks the Community Safety Partnership and the Safeguarding Vulnerable
People Partnership (SVPP) to keep the Health and Wellbeing Board
informed work which enables a multi-agency approach to preventing and
tackling serious violence

Reason for Proposal

The consultation sights Health and Wellbeing Boards as an example of multi-agency
working arrangements which have a significant role to play in preventing and tackling
violence, in collaboration with Community Safety Partnerships (CSP) and other local
partners. It is therefore essential to the work of both the CSP and the SVPP that the

HWB supports this response to the consultation.

Tracy Daszkiewicz
Chair of the Community Safety Partnership and Director of Public Health
Wiltshire Council

Page 95



Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

23 May 2019

Subject: Home Office consultation on a new legal duty to support a multi-agency
approach to preventing and tackling serious violence

Purpose of Report
To brief the Health and Wellbeing Board on:

- Home Office consultation to introduce new legal duty to support a multi-agency
approach to preventing and tackling serious violence

Background

- The consultation opened on 1 April 2019 and closes on 28 May.
- It highlights the Government’s support of a multi-agency or ‘public health’ approach to
tackling serious violence through the introduction of a new legal duty.
- The consultation document stresses the importance of a multi-agency approach, and
early intervention.
- All options support a ‘public health’ approach to tackling violent crime, involving:
o Different organisations working together through (existing) partnerships to
prevent and tackle serious violence as a priority.
o Consulting with communities, especially those most affected, and young people.
o Regular sharing of data and intelligence, to prevent and tackle serious violence
and to identify those most at risk of becoming affected.
o Using that information to develop a programme of early interventions.
o Partnerships un-constrained by organisational, professional or geographical
boundaries.
o Partners working together to agree joint funding for services.
Using evidence including relevant evaluations to inform decision-making.
o Organisations being held accountable for their work on serious violence, e.g.
inspections or joint inspections.

O

What options are being consulted on?

e Option 1: New duty on specific organisations to have due regard to the
prevention and tackling of serious violence.

o A new legal duty under primary legislation for specific organisations
(including Local Authorities, senior criminal justice figures, education, child
care, health and social care and the police) to be focussed on and
accountable for preventing and tackling serious violence.

o Each body would decide how they would comply with this, alongside
government guidance.

o Anassessment of cost implications is requested as part of this consultation
but the lack of detail around any potential changes would make completing
an assessment extremely difficult.

o It is suggested that the relevant inspectorates covering the organisations
subject to the duty or joint inspections may be able to check how far
agencies are complying with the new duty, or, in respect of democratically
elected authorities, held to account by their electorates.

Page 96



o Option 1is the Government’s preferred option however it is recognised that
in some areas strong and effective partnerships already exist.

e Option 2: New duty through legislation to revise Community Safety
Partnerships
o New legislation to ensure CSPs have a strategy for preventing and tackling
serious violence.
o Statutory CSP membership would be inclusive of all the relevant agencies
who work to tackle and prevent serious violence. This would commit a
greater range and number of agencies to be involved in the work of CSPs.

e Option 3: A voluntary non-legislative approach
o To encourage areas to adopt voluntary measures to take part in a multi-
agency approach, rather than a statutory duty.
o The Government would facilitate the sharing of best practice and provide
guidance.
o The success of this option relies on someone taking a leadership role to
drive this work and bring partners together.

Wiltshire’s Draft Response

Response to the Serious Violence Legal Duty Consultation tendered on behalf of
Wiltshire’s Community Safety Partnership

In Wiltshire, we are developing a local public health approach to tackling violent crime in
our county. That approach and our response to this consultation has been considered in
partnership. Our response to this consultation, as set out below, has been collated from
the feedback of the Community Safety Partnership members and wider multi-agency
forums.

A full list of agencies whose views are represented here is included below and this
response is submitted on behalf of the Partnership. In light of our decision to reply as a
partnership, Parts 1 and 2 of the consultation do not apply. In relation to other questions
posed:

Part 3, 8-14:

In Wiltshire, we have spent the last two years ensuring that our partnership
arrangements will allow us to work effectively across agendas. This work supports our
belief that:

Children, young people and adults live in families and local communities; these can
be sources of support and safety or of danger and risk. Our approach to
safeguarding and protecting our community is focused around where people live
and with whom — it’s an approach which has ‘Think Family, Think Community’ at its
heart.

Our partnership arrangements work as set out below (Figure 1). It involves a strong
component of independent scrutiny and is aided by one support team, funded by the
partnership. As part of the Department of Education’s Early Adopter Programme, we
stood down our Local Safeguarding Children Board and instead constructed a
Safeguarding Vulnerable People Partnership. This partnership group brings together
those who lead Wiltshire’s services to safeguard children, young people and adults and
to improve community safety.

Page 97



Figure 1.

Think family —

Safeguarding Adults
working holistically g s

Board

Overseeing quality

Safeguarding Safeguarding :zsdu ir;r:;ec't";ﬂf:emem

children and those adults most partnership’s work to

young people at risk of harm safeguard adults with care
and support needs from
abuse and neglect

Families and Children
Systems Assurance
Board

Safeguarding
Vulnerable People
Partnership

Overseeing quality
assurance, improvement
and impact of the
partnership’s work to
safeguard children

Building more resilient Increasing community

communities by protecting resilience by working across the
people from harm and partnership to reduce the

injury Community impact of wider harm and

vulnerability
Safety
Partnership

The strength of our Community Safety Partnership, alongside our Local Safeguarding
Adults Board and our new Safeguarding Vulnerable People Partnership, is allowing us to
work innovatively to prevent harm and reduce the likelihood and impact of violent crime.

The strategic framework presented in figure 2 (below) identifies the thematic priorities for
the Community Safety Partnership. The work governed and delivered through the
partnership is underpinned by the adoption of the vulnerability framework. This
approach focuses on ‘prevention’ and tackling root causes, reducing the risks and
exposure to negative experiences from happening in the first place. Acknowledging
there will be occasions where ‘it will happen’, work will seek to improve resilience, to
enable both individuals and communities to be better equipped and skilled to deal with
adversity and make healthier life choices.

Figure 2. Wiltshire’s Community Safety Partnership Strategic Framework

Addressed through work on’

Protect Wider Violent Crime,
pe°p|e from Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence
serious _ Modem Slavery
Criminal & Sexual Exploitation
harm Child Sexual Abuse (incl. Child Sexual
Exploitation), Missing
Addressed through work on:
Protecting our Communities including
Anti-Social Behaviour, Licensing & Enable
Night Time Economy Safer
ST Communities

Road Safety Partnership

vulnerability and exploitation
Buluiea] [eso] pue asueinssy Alend

Whole system approach to addressing

Page 98



These strong partnership arrangements will allow us to deliver on our commitment to
developing a local public health approach to reducing serious violent crime. Wiltshire
has established a Violent Crime Executive, a sub group of the Community Safety
Partnership. This brings together colleagues from education, policing, health, criminal
justice and emergency justice to deliver pan-Wiltshire, multi-agency strategies to tackle
violent crime and Serious and Organised Crime (SOC).

Operationally we have two Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hubs (MASH) - one that
accommodates a team of staff from across agencies to focus on safeguarding children
and young people, and a second which was recently introduced to allow us to better
safeguard adults at risk. Alongside these hubs we are pooling multi-agency data to
inform our new Vulnerable Adolescent Safeguarding Panel and to collect intelligence on
a vulnerability tracker which maps those young people most at risk. Alongside MASH
arrangements, we are now part of the Contextual Safeguarding Scale-Up Project
(CSSU) by the University of Bedfordshire. We we’re one of a small number of areas who
have been successful in our bid to be a development site. The CSSU Project will create
an operational Contextual Safeguarding system in Wiltshire.

The drive and impetus of our work across agencies demonstrates the strength of our
partnership and of our determination, not just to respond to, but to prevent violent crime.

The intention set out at option 1 is to ensure information and intelligence sharing and to
ensure that all agencies have due regard for our need to work collectively to prevent
violent crime. We support the wider intention of this option. However, we would urge
against the introduction of prescriptive guidance on how partners should work together,
which would potentially deflect from the work we are already doing by introducing
greater complexity and bureaucratic burden. Whilst Alan Wood'’s review focused on the
effectiveness of LSCBs, his comments are highly relevant in considering how we
respond as a collective to violent crime:

“....on a scale of prescriptive to permissive arrangements, the pendulum has locked
itself too close to a belief that we should say how things should be done as opposed to
what outcomes we want for children and young people...... Too much of practice
leaders’ time is taken up in servicing the architecture of multi-agency arrangements.
Examples given by Police and Crime Commissioners and other leaders show that the
wide range of Boards, Committees and other bodies established to consider similar
issues as the LSCB, compounds a growing demand on officers to attend meetings and
produce reports.” (Woods Review, 2016)

At this stage in the development of our local response, we are keen to ensure that we
have flexibility and are not locked into new, and potentially prescriptive and costly, multi-
agency duties that make our existing and evolving arrangements less effective.

For us, the introduction of new legal duties has the potential to detract from the fact that
prevention of violent crime cannot be done in isolation - that means that we have to work
as a partnership but also that we cannot identify, respond to or prevent violent crime
without regarding it as connected to our work to safeguard children and adults, and
make our communities more resilient.

We do though acknowledge that it is pivotal for all agencies to understand, accept and
wholeheartedly play their part in helping to tackle violent crime. To ensure that practice
reflects this reality, we would recommend that new statutory guidance commits
Community Safety Partnerships to reporting on an annual basis to evidence effective
partnership working to reduce serious violent crime.

Page 99


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/526329/Alan_Wood_review.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/526329/Alan_Wood_review.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/526329/Alan_Wood_review.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/526329/Alan_Wood_review.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/526329/Alan_Wood_review.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/526329/Alan_Wood_review.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/526329/Alan_Wood_review.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/526329/Alan_Wood_review.pdf

We would ask that:

- Community Safety Partnerships submit an annual report evidencing local work to
evidence the multi-agency response to tackling serious violent crime.

- In this report, all localities are asked to evidence connectivity between their
statutory partnership arrangements - to safeguard adults, children and to improve
community safety.

- That all agencies that form part of the Community Safety Partnership are, by
statute, asked to share information and intelligence where this enables the
partnership to undertake work to prevent serious violent crime in the future.

Funding and resources

In relation to Part 4 questions 4-29, it is not believed that the recommendations we have
made above would have significant cost implications, but it is essential that Community
Safety Partnership are resourced to carry out new functions. In the case of LSABs and
new partnership arrangements to safeguarding children, local partners have been asked
to agree and meet any funding requirements. It should be recognised this detracts from
the focus of partnership work, often leads to one agency having primacy in terms of
ownership and can weaken the support for essential work to strengthen local multi-
agency work and training.

A relatively small amount of Early Adopters funding has allowed us to recruit a Criminal
Exploitation Pathways & Risk Analyst to triangulate and analyse data from across our
partner agencies to inform and support the introduction of our multi-agency Vulnerable
Adolescents Contextual Safeguarding Panel. The panel is ensuring multi-agency
information and intelligence is gathered and shared to identify children and young people
who are vulnerable to exploitation. As a consequence, we are now able to map hotspots,
trends and risks in missing episodes, identify victim and perpetrator information and
target criminal activity involving children, including County Lines. This informs the work
of the partnership and supports development of strategy and an operational response.

Funding, alongside statutory guidance, is required to enable effective and intelligent data
sharing and analysis. Well targeted resources will be vital to ensuring that the concept of
taking a public health approach to tackling violent crime makes a difference, not just a
policy position.

We would add that the cost implications of Option 1 are potentially far more significant.
That cost would be borne by not only by those agencies with new legal duties, Local
Authorities, health agencies and schools, but by the police in supporting those agencies
and facilitating new reporting mechanisms. Meanwhile in Wiltshire, effective reporting
mechanisms already exist across agencies.

Report Author: Tracy Daszkiewicz

Title: Chair of the Community Safety Partnership and Director of
Public Health

Organisation: Wiltshire Council

Page 100



Agenda Item 10

Health and Wellbeing Board

23" May 2019

Subject: Learning Disability (LD) Review

Executive Summary

The Director of Adult Social Care Operations, Mental Health and Learning Disabilities
(Wiltshire Council) and the Acting Commissioning Director (Maternity, Children and
Mental health — Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group) are at the Health and
Wellbeing Board, 23 May 2019 to provide an update on Learning Disability Services
for the population of Wiltshire and to highlight the intended direction of travel.

Proposal(s)

It is recommended that the Board notes the decision to co-produce a review of
Learning Disability service delivery, which will be incorporated into a Whole Life
Pathway approach via the FACT programme.

Reason for Proposal

Adults with a Learning Disability in Wiltshire who require care and support from Adult
Social Care are supported by the Community Team for People with a Learning
Disability (CTPLD).

This is a co-located but not fully integrated health and social care team. The health
element of the service is run by Wiltshire Health and Care, commissioned via Wiltshire
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and the social care service by Wiltshire Council.

Over 1,000 people are currently receiving paid for care and support via CTPLD which
has an adult social care budget in 2019/20 of £50,350,000. For several years the
Learning Disability council budget has been significantly over spent (18/19 by
£2,400,000).

Wiltshire Council (adult social care) also has a number of ‘Learning Disability Inhouse
Provider Services’ which consist of:

3 residential respite units:

e Bradbury House: a 9 bed unit in Salisbury serving currently 35 people and
which has a Requires Improvement CQC rating

¢ Bradbury Manor: a 9 bed unit in Devizes serving currently 45 people which has
a Requires Improvement CQC rating

¢ Meadow Lodge: a 4 bed unit in Chippenham serving currently 25 people which
has a Good CQC rating

5 days services which are not currently CQC registered these are:

Page 101



e The Meadows: based in Salisbury working with 60 people
e The Yarn: based in Devizes working with 45 people

e The Wave: based in Warminster working with 15 people
e The Medley: based in Trowbridge working with 45 people
e Riverbank: based in Chippenham working with 60 people

The Council also runs a Shared Lives scheme (rated as Good under CQC), which
works across adult social care and currently supports 20 carers, who provide long
term placements for 27 service users. There is a plan in place to strengthen this
scheme across adult social care.

Wiltshire CCG and Council have acknowledged that a review of the current Learning
Disability and Autism Spectrum (ASD) pathway is required at both a local (place-
based) and at scale level to improve outcomes for individuals and families and reduce
preventable attendances and admissions to statutory services.

The CCG also has a strong focus on reviewing the Daisy Unit, which provides
inpatient support to four Learning Disabled residents, following a CQC inspection and
recommendations.

During the last few years joint strategic commissioning activity for Learning Disabilities
and ASD has been limited across adult health and social care services and as a result
this has led to insufficient services being made available to people with Learning
Disabilities and those on the Autism Spectrum and their carers.

The current Learning Disability offer is traditional, and has led to an over reliance on in
house service provision, which currently does not promote resilience for individuals
and their families to support them to be independent and to be fully integrated
members of their communities. The current offer of support to individuals who are on
the Autism Spectrum is also limited and currently there is no specialist NHS and or
Council provision to support this service user group effectively.

Equally, it is accepted that the personalisation agenda, where the Council and
subsequently the CCG, through Personal Health Budgets, promotes and supports
service users and their carers to be the experts in their care and support has not been
fully implemented.

This has created a culture where individuals have become dependent and reliant on
traditional models of care and support, such as residential care rather than a culture
which promotes independence and the notion that every person can contribute to their
community. This has been recognised as a difficulty for local authorities nationally and
Wiltshire Council and Wiltshire CCG are committed to working effectively with partners
across the health and social care system, to improve services for people with a
Learning Disability and or ASD from birth throughout adulthood.

In order to do this Wiltshire Council and Wiltshire CCG must review its current
services, establish gaps in provision and work with service users, carers and the
voluntary sector to co-create services for the future.

Presenter name: Claire Edgar
Title: Director of Adult Social Care Operations, Mental Health and Learning
Disabilities

Page 102




| Organisation: Wiltshire Council

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

23" May 2019

Subject: Learning Disability (LD) Review

1. Purpose of Report

This paper seeks to highlight the work being undertaken as part of a review into the
delivery of services for people with a Learning Disability and or ASD within Wiltshire,
taking into consideration a Whole Life Pathway for individuals with complex and or
additional needs.

This report will highlight in brief the direction of travel required to improve service
provision for individuals with a Learning Disability and or ASD and the rationale for the
need for such a review of services.

2. Background

Adult social care recognises the work undertaken by FACT, the Families and Children’s
Transformation programme (Whole Life Pathway, workstream) in 2018, which identified
through co-production concerns by service users and their carers who had or were due

to transition from children’s services to adults services who described the experience as
a ‘cliff edge’.

Adult social care also recognises the need to modernise its current offer to ensure it is
able to be an equitable service to individuals who may not have a diagnosed Learning
Difficulty but may have significant cognitive and or neurological conditions, such as ASD.

This is particularly important given the emerging data which states the majority of
children and young people who are likely to transition from Families and Children’s
social care to Adult social care have an Autism diagnosis and currently there is no clear
pathway for these individuals to transition to, nor is there any specialist commissioned
services available for them, should they require it, on the NHS in Wiltshire.

The review of Learning Disability services will fall under the Whole Life Pathway
workstream to ensure it encompasses transitions from Children’s services to Adults
services and that it pays close attention to the service users without any formal
diagnosis but who still require care and support beyond childhood.

The workstream leads (Claire Edgar, Director Adult Social Care Operations, Mental
Health and Learning Disabilities and Lucy Townsend, Director of Families and Children)
will report directly into the FACT Operation Group and Executive Board to ensure the
development of services takes a systemic integrated approach that will recognise the
need:

¢ to enable individuals with a Learning Disability (and those with complex and or
additional needs such as ASD) to be able to access universal services more
successfully to increase their connectivity to their own community,

Page 103



e to build resilience in local communities to enable individuals to live as
independently and safely as possible in order that they do not have to live in
institutions, sometimes out of Wiltshire

and to ensure

e services are able to respond proactively by intervening earlier to avoid crisis and
work with service users and their carers to promote an active and engaging life
filled with opportunities.

The Whole Life Pathway will be designed to reduce the impact of transitioning from
Family and Children’s Services into Adult Services and where people, no longer require
the input of statutory services that there is a step-down approach which ensures that the
‘cliff edge’ parents and carers described when moving through services is reduced.

Both the CCG and the Council also recognise that further work is required to support
adults currently receiving services to progress towards independence where appropriate.

It is envisaged that the Learning Disability in house provision will be developed to work
towards a new ‘enablement’ model designed to maximise independence, choice and
control.

The CCG'’s review will need to link with a planned at scale review of Learning Disability
and ASD health services across the BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire (BSW) and wider to
include Bristol, North Somerset and South Gloucestershire (BNSSG) footprints. BSW
are also co-creating a Mental Health Strategy and Vision, which includes Learning
Disability and ASD.

3. Main Considerations

The Whole Life Pathway will ensure individuals with a Learning Disability (and those with
complex and or additional needs such as ASD) and their carers are given more
opportunity to take control of important areas of their lives including service and support
arrangements. It will play close attention to understanding the needs of children and
young people transitioning into adult services as well as a commitment to design
services to meet the needs of the changing population of adults with a Learning
Disability (and those with complex and or additional needs such as ASD) in Wiltshire.

This new approach will promote individual’s rights, support them to make choices, to
enable them to lead independent lives and to be included in society. The approach
mirrors the BSW health strategy and vision in relation to supporting community resilience
and reducing preventable demand on secondary statutory services.

It is proposed that a commitment and direction of travel is established that enables
people to transform their lives from one where they simply live and exist in communities
using specialist services, into one where they live as part of their community. People’s
needs will be met in the least restrictive settings possible, based on risk assessments.

In order to deliver the vision outlined above an extensive programme of work is required
over the next two to three years, which will require significant partnership working both
internal and external to the Council. It will require a programme management approach
to ensure each key area is properly managed and that identified outcomes are delivered
in a timely way.

Central to developing the approach is co-production to ensure that staff,

Page 104



partners, service users, (adults and children and young people) and their parents and
carers are at the centre of developing services that meet needs and improve outcomes
for the citizens of Wiltshire who have additional and complex needs.

This will be co-ordinated by the Transformational Lead for the Whole Life Pathway who
will focus on redesigning and shaping Learning Disability services with Commissioning
colleagues to develop a Whole Life Pathway which has a Joint (Health and Social Care)
Commissioning Strategy underpinning it, which reflects the model outlined above
incorporating not just Learning Disability services but reflects the need to provide
services for individuals who are on the Autism Spectrum and those who may require
access to other specialist mental health provision.

4. Next Steps

e The review of current Learning Disability services will come under FACT
governance and will include service provision for individuals who have other
complex needs and neurological conditions (for example but not exclusive to
ASD) and will form part of the new Whole Life Pathway approach

e The appointment of a Transformational Lead for the Whole Life Pathway will
commence

e A strategy and vision for the Whole Life Pathway will be co-produced with key
stakeholders, service users, families and carers with clear objectives and
timescales.

e Partners will ensure there are clear work streams to avoid any duplication with
interdependent strategy developments and pathway reviews

Presenter name: Claire Edgar

Title: Director of Adult Social Care, Operations Mental Health and Learning
Disability

Organisation: Wiltshire Council

Report Authors:
Claire Edgar, Director of Adult Social Care, Operations Mental Health and Learning
Disability, Wiltshire Council

Lucy Baker, Acting Director Commissioning Director (Maternity, Children and Mental
health) Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

23 May 2019

Subject: Wiltshire Air Quality Strategy

Executive Summary

l. Local authorities have a duty to monitor air quality within their areas
having regard to national air quality objectives and standards and
report this information to Department for Environment Food and Rural
Affairs (Defra) annually.

Il. As part of the development of the revised Wiltshire Air Quality
Strategy views and comments have previously been sought from the
Environment Select Committee.

Proposal(s)

l. To bring to the attention of the Board the updated Air Quality Strategy
ahead of its consideration by Cabinet.

Reason for Proposal

[.  The Environment Act 1995 Part IV places a duty on Wiltshire Council to
monitor and achieve the Air Quality Objectives contained in the National
Air Quality Strategy and regulations. The strategy contributes to
discharging this duty and improving air quality in Wiltshire.

[I.  To refresh the original Wiltshire strategy on how the council will work with
other parties to improve air quality.

Tracy Daszkiewicz
Director of Public Health
Wiltshire Council

Page 107



Wiltshire Council

Health and Wellbeing Board

23 May 2019

Subject: Wiltshire Air Quality Strategy

Purpose of Report

1.

To seek the approval of the Board for the draft Air Quality Strategy prior to
consideration by Cabinet.

Relevance to the Council’s Business Plan

2.

The Wiltshire Council Business Plan 2017- 2027 sets out the vision to
create strong communities, with priorities for growing the economy, strong
communities and protecting the vulnerable. As part of strong communities
the council recognises the need to work with community groups to build
engagement and to work together to support a healthier population.

Background

3.

The draft Air Quality Strategy was considered by Environment Select
Committee at its meeting on 23 April 2019. Comments made by
Committee have been incorporated in to the attached draft.

Despite some limited improvements in national air quality the targets
imposed by EU legislation have been missed and as a result the UK
Government has been taken to the High Court on a number of occasions.
In response to these legal challenges the Government published the Air
Quality plan for nitrogen dioxide (NO2) in UK (2017) in July. The plan,
was designed to reduce the impact of diesel vehicles and accelerate the
move to cleaner transport and resulted in additional funding being made
available to a small number of local authorities to support their plans to
tackle poor air quality. No financial support was given Wiltshire Council.

The existing Wiltshire Air Quality Strategy needs to be refreshed as it was
originally published in 2011. In the first three months of 2019 there have
been a number of significant national publications relating to air quality
and these have been referred to in the revised strategy. These documents
include a national Clean Air Strategy issued by the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra), Outdoor air quality and
health issued by the National Institute for Health and Care Excellence
(NICE), and a Review of interventions to improve outdoor air quality and
public health published by Public Health England.

Page 108



Main Considerations

6.

10.

Wiltshire enjoys very good air quality in the vast majority of its town and
villages. This is perhaps unsurprising given the rural nature of much of
county. The areas of concern are very localised and involve a small
number of specific streets.

Local authorities are required to review and assess local air quality in
accordance with the statutory Local Air Quality Management guidance
under Part IV of the Environment Act 1995. Specifically local councils have
a duty to review and assess the air quality in its area against specific
pollutants focusing on locations where members of the public are likely to
be exposed over the averaging period for the pollutant objectives. There
are currently eight Air Quality Management Areas in Wiltshire where traffic
related pollution levels exceed national standards. One in Bradford on
Avon for NO2 and PMio and solely NOzin Calne, Devizes, Marlborough,
Salisbury (3) and Westbury. Work has been ongoing with local air quality
groups in the affected towns and reporting through the Area Boards to
start to address the issues in these areas.

The Air Quality Strategy provides high level guidance to inform policy and
direction across a range of council services with the aim of improving air
quality and reducing NO2 and PMio levels below the national trigger levels.
Improvements in air quality are generally difficult to achieve as they rely on
individuals, businesses and communities changing their travel behaviour.
Given this, the strategy recognises that improving areas of poor air quality
can only be achieved by working collaboratively across the council, and
with local communities and other relevant organisations and agencies.

The Air Quality Strategy does not contain specific local actions but these
are included in the more detailed Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP), which
provides further information and includes local community area action
plans in relation to the eight Air Quality Management Areas within
Wiltshire. The AQAP has been developed with local members and
community involvement.

The Board is asked for its views and comments on the draft strategy, and
specifically on the areas listed below:

Safeguarding considerations

11.

None

Public health implications

12.

The issue of air pollution is a major public health concern, and poor air
quality is recognised as the largest environmental risk to public health in
the UK and results in an estimated 40,000 premature deaths a year. Work
to improve traffic related air pollution would contribute to improving the
health of the local population.

Page 109



Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

13. The Air Quality Strategy forms part of the council’s wider response to
climate change and supports reductions in local air pollution levels.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal

14.  Improvements to local air quality will benefit all Wiltshire residents and
visitors to the county including all segments of the general public.

Risk Assessment

15.  If the strategy is not revised it will become more out of date and risks not
delivering the desired improvements to air quality in the county.

Financial implications

16. There are no costs associated with publication of the Air Quality Strategy,
however there may be an opportunity to lobby Defra for additional funding
to deliver local improvements.

Legal implications

17. Part IV of the Environment Act 1995 places a duty on the local authority to
monitor air quality in its areas and report to Defra on an annual basis.

18. The Development of this up to date Strategy provides for a framework for
future action to improve air quality within Wiltshire which permits flexible
implementation within broad outlines.

19. ltis consistent with national guidelines and will assist the Council to
achieve its objective of improving the air quality within Wiltshire to help to
better the environment and the health and well-being of all residents and
visitors to its area.

Conclusions
20. Approval of the Health and Well Being Board is sought before the final

strategy is placed before Cabinet for adoption as a formal strategy of the
Council to form part of the Budget and Policy framework.

Tracy Daszkiewicz
Director of Public Health and Public Protection

Report author: John Carter
Head of Public Protection

Page 110



Air Quality Strategy
for Wiltshire

Wiltshire Council

~————>_ Where everybody matters




Page 112



Page 113



Section 1:

Section 2:

Section 3:

Section 4:

Section 5:

Section 6:

Section 7:

Section 8:

Introduction

Defining air quality

Defining the air quality challenge

The costs of air pollution

Pollutants of concernin Wiltshire

National picture

Air pollution and climate change

What has the Air Quality Strategy 2011 - 2015 achieved?

The challenges we face and next steps

Wiltshire’s air quality strategy

Strategic targets and actions

European Directive on Air Quality
Local air quality management
Public Health Outcomes Framework

Objectives

Delivering good air quality - responsibilities

National and EU
Wiltshire Council
Community
Individual

Communication

Strategic priorities

Strategic priority 1: Secure air quality objectives in the eight AQMAs

Strategic priority 2: Maintaining good air quality across the county

Strategic priority 3: Wiltshire Council's own actions

Strategic priority 4: Communication and information dissemination

Implementation

Governance

Page 114

o o v L1 A N NN

~N

(0]

O 00 0 o

10
10
10
10
10

11

11

12
12

13

13



Appendix 1: Wiltshire Air Quality Strategy 2011-2015 achievements

Appendix 2: Air quality objectives

Appendix 3: NO2 monitoring using diffusion tubes

Page 115

14

14

15



Section 1: Introduction

Ourobjectiveistoimprovetheairwebreathe
andto better our environment, health
and wellbeing.

Since the first Wiltshire Air Quality Strategy was
published in 2011, issues around air quality and
health have moved on considerably both
nationally and locally. In Wiltshire we prioritised
the development of core policy 55, working with
the spatial planners to get it accepted as part of
the Wiltshire Core Strategy. We drafted initial
guidance on air quality for developers and
worked with the area boards to establish
community air quality working groups. The Air
Quality Action Plan for Wiltshire, which focuses
on the areas where air quality objectives are
currently being exceeded, was published in June
2015. Itoutlines our community based approach
to local air quality management, and provides the
detail which is not included in this strategy. The
2015 Action Plan supersedes the action plan
containedin theoriginal strategyand soitis now
appropriateto refresh the strategy.

This updated air quality strategy seeks to maintain
progress with the improvement of air quality
across all communities in Wiltshire, and
reflects the national Clean Air Strategy 2019
Defra in January 2019.

Page 116



Tracy Daszkiewicz _
Director of Public Health Clir Jerry Wickham

& Public Protection Cabinet Member for
Adult Social Care,
Public Health &
Public Protection

Page 117



Section 2: Defining air quality

Defining the air quality challenge
Wiltshire

Wiltshire Ale Qualiy

Fiow seiny ceas S b Peme 1 S SR g waes g

e a — Alr unlll‘y in Wiltshire
= =
- n—.--..- ke e adeast sarea B
—— [ ey
oy e ﬁ
= =2 s ot e e s
e il 4 - o i i 0 AT BAOGE
e 4 L
pra ’# My e %
L E T T S s P S R A Gy e St 822 AR
4 S R WP Y 8 8 ST S0 T g premeg 108 B M s
_— -m e ol 8e g e
= —
o TR BT SR AIRE ' Y (e T g R | et W b
e ' TP T e
Femd aed Bim 08 guiuben b e rmel bt
[ ——
Famed ~ + P tw gt St R h SRR S e VAT
P p——
Latost weathor Yeather aloris Email & SMS aleris
m—
Wt e L] LECHN
Trewteidge e
Sl 30 e e
e | |
e | Pt e s e Kno “'L‘R 1 e
moods B O A
o " fomy s b e e e e
- - ] 6ol [ S IS ppe—
B st ki s
R

Erate meegs gee wbed by Be Er By
Em¥ o i)

Wi drmegreed e warbarws b i vt b sy © 2014
Ereecy & Locten pwecy | Vil i Wlshre Lancs sagly

The air we breathe is made up of a complex mix
ofgasesandfine particulates. Some ofthese
arebeneficial, someare harmful pollutantsand
others, suchas pollen, that have both benefits and
detrimental effects. Pollutantsthataffectourairquality
come from both natural and manmade sources.

Wiltshire Council monitors certain pollutants usinga
network of nitrogendioxide passive diffusiontubes,
fourrealtimemonitoringstationsandtwo Osiris
indicative fine particulate monitors. It has developed
a dedicated website for air quality which allows
individuals to interrogate monitoring data, view
reports, sign up for text alerts and view community
action planninginformation.

Page 118

The costs of air pollution

Human

Poorairquality has consequences forpeople’s
health and wellbeing as well as for our surrounding
natural and builtenvironment. The health
consequences

of polluted airarewell documented, and were ably
demonstrated bythelLondonsmogs ofthelate
19th and early 20th century. The worst of these
events was showntoberesponsibleformany
thousandsof excess deaths. These historicsmogs
were caused by thelarge scale burning of coal and
wood and were a highly visible example of air
pollution and its health effects.



Many of the pollutants of concerntoday are invisible to
the eye butactasrespiratoryirritants, which

are particularly problematicifindividuals have pre-
existing medical conditions or other vulnerabilities.
While significantimprovements have been made, air
pollutionremains areal challenge forsome
communities in Wiltshire.

The Committee on Medical Effects of Air Pollution
(COMEAP) found that the burden of manmade
particulate air pollution on mortality in 2008 was
equivalentto nearly 29,000 deaths in the UK at typical
ages and an associated loss of total of population life of
340,000 life-years. The Royal College of Physicians'
report “Every breath we take: the lifelong impact of air
pollution” has recently put the figure at 40,000 deaths
peryear and the costto health services and business at
more than £20billion.

The economic costs of air pollution are not
immediately apparent. There arewide rangingindirect
costs to the economy such as loss of income to
individuals and to businesses through sickness absence
andloss of productivity; trafficcongestionas transport
isdelayed; repairstoinfrastructuredueto physical
damage such as that caused to buildings by acidic rain
and wider burdens associated with climate variation
such as flooding.

The contribution of air pollution to the severity of
illnessandtothe costs forhealthservicesandwider
society are not yet well understood by the medical and
scientificcommunity. In 2010 the House of Commons
Environment Audit Committee estimated the health
costsofairpollutioninthe UKas beingintheregion
of £8-£20 billion per year.

It is often those at the lower end of the equality
spectrumthatliveinthe pooresthousing,inareas
wheretrafficis heavierand soexperienceless positive
health and wellbeing outcomes. Intackling air quality
weneedtoconsiderhealthinequalitiesandensure
these do notwiden.

Pollutants of concern in Wiltshire

The air quality in Wiltshire is predominantly very
good, with the majority of the county having clean,
unpolluted air. There are, however, a small number of
locations where the combination of traffic, road layout
and topography resultin pollutants being trapped so
that concentrations increase to unacceptable levels.

Two pollutants cause most concern within Wiltshire:
nitrogen dioxide (NO,) and particulate matter (PM10)

Page 119



primarily from motor vehicles.

The relatively few locations where air quality may fail
to meet the national standards have to be investigated
andsampledinordertodeterminethetrueextentof
theproblem.Ifsignificantpollutionisidentifiedthe
councilhasto declare an Air Quality Management
Area (AQMA) and put plans in place to seek to
improve the airquality.

There are currently eight AQMAs in six towns and one
city in Wiltshire.

This strategy focuses on improving air quality
across Wiltshire, seeks to prevent any further

Mtlog andencourage mterventlonsfltwull

atratio itkogen dioxideand fine

Nitrogenoxides (NOx)are comprised mainly of two

pollutants; nitric oxide (NO) and nitrogen dioxide

(NO,) which are products of combustion offossl?age 120
| 8]

N|trogen oxidesreadily converttonitrogen
dioxi

inthe air, so to reduce concentrations of
nitrogen dioxideitis essential to control
emissions of NOx.

Highlevels of nitrogen dioxide causes
inflammation oftheairwaysandlong-term
exposurecanaffect lungfunctionand
respiratory symptoms.Itcanalso increase
asthma symptoms. The healthimpacts of
nitrogendioxide are, however, lesswell

understood than those of particulate matter.

Particulate matter (PM)is acomplex mixture of

non-



gaseous materials of varied chemical composition. Itis
categorised by the size of the particles. Forexample,
PM10 is particles with a diameter of less than 10
microns. Most PM emissions are caused by road traffic,
with engine emissions and tyre and brake wear being
themainsources. Constructionsites, are also potential
sources of local particulate pollution, along with
accidental fires and burning of waste. However, a large
proportion of particulate comes from natural sources,

such as seasalt, forest fires and Saharan dust, as well as

fromsourcesoutsideWiltshirecaused byhuman
activity. Small particles tend to be long-livedin the
atmosphere and can be transported great distances.

Particulates aggravate respiratory and cardiovascular
conditions. Research shows that particles with a
diameter of 10 microns or less (PM10) are likely to be
inhaled deep into the lungs.

National picture

Levels of PM10 declined in the UK in the 1990s
thoughtherate ofimprovementhas beenslowerin
the last decade. Similarly, nationally levels of NO, fell
until2002 and have beenrelativelyunchangedever
since.Locallyitisamixedpicture;levels of nitrogen
dioxide and particulates have reduced in many
locations or plateaued in others. However, it should be
borne in mind that the locations we monitor are those
where levels are known to be elevated and represent a
worst case scenario. Theselocationsareverylimitedin
number.

Recently concerns have emerged with respect to
emissions from new road vehicles. A study by the
Department for Transport (DfT) found significant
differences between laboratory based emission
performance and on the road real world emission
levels. The government has indicated real world
emission testing will be used in the future.

Air pollution and climate change

Improvingair quality canalso help address climate
change.Ozone,whichis formed by pollutants such

as NOxandvolatile organiccompounds (VOCs)
reactingin sunlightis a powerful greenhouse gas that
contributes to global warming directly and by reducing

carbonuptakebyvegetation.Black carbon,whichis
part of the overall mass of particulate matter emitted
bydieselenginesthroughincompletecombustion,
contributestoclimatechangebyabsorbingheat. By
making vehicles,homes and workplaces more energy
efficient, this strategy will also contribute to achieving
the objectives of the council’s policies and strategies
with respect to climate change.

Page 121



Climate change will also have an impact on air quality.
Longer, hotter summers could increase the frequency
and severity of summer smogs, though wetter winters
may reduce emission concentrations.

What has the Air Quality Strategy
2011 - 2015achieved?

Improving local air quality requires changes to be
made by everyone. Working collaboratively with
communities, Wiltshire Council will seek to maintain
thegoodairqualityinthe countyandwaktodeliver
improvements in areas where air quality fails national
objectivesinorderto protect publichealthandthe
environment. Since the first strategyin 2011, arange
of actions have been delivered. These include the
provision of a dedicated air quality website providing
realtimedata, atextalertservicetowarnof poorair
quality, the setting up of community air quality action
plangroupsinareaswith AQMAs, a countywide air
quality action plan, draft supplementary planning
guidance and an air quality policy in the Wiltshire Core
Strategy.

Many of the measures contained within the strategic

action plan have been implemented and are detailed
in appendix 1.

The challenges we face and next steps

With new developments being built there is potential
toincrease the number of people living and working

inareaswith poorairqualityanditisimportantthat
Wiltshire Council takes steps, to manage this situation
to minimise or eliminate possible harm.

The challenge of maintaining and improving air
qualityinsomeof Wiltshire’s markettownsis
considerable. These stem from:

Arequirementfornew housingand essential
economic development across the county.

The layout of our historic towns, which often
attractvisitors from all over the world. Their narrow
streets create canyon effects that can inhibit
pollutant dispersal.

Being a large rural county with a higher than
average carownership.

The economic climate including the viability of
rural publictransport.

Some towns not having a train station or public
transport infrastructure.

The county being a popular tourist destination.

The A36 trunk road running through the south
andwestofthe county,andis the maincross
countyroadforcommercial trafficbetween
Bristol and Southampton.

An aging population susceptible to chronic

conditions thatincrease vulnerability to poor air

il



Section 3: Wiltshire’s air quality strategy

This strategy has beendeveloped by te Public
Health and Public Protection seniceand is a refresh of
the Air Quality Strategy producedin 2011. Its
production is supported by thelocalair quality
management Framework, the National Air Quality
Strategy, the EU Air Quality Directive and the Public
Health Outcomes Framework. It is an overarching
document that providesalocalevidencebasefor
theinclusionofa core policy on air quality in the
Wiltshire Core Strategy.

Ourvisionistocreateanenvironmentwhere people
have healthy, active lives for a healthier population. In
doing so it will reduce the human and financial cost of
air quality to individuals, families, communities,
public services and the wider economy. How we
define and measure success isexplainedinsection
four-strategictargetsand measuring our success.

Thisstrategy supportstheWiltshire CouncilBusiness
Plan, the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and
wider strategies including; Local Transport Plan 3,
Wiltshire Core Strategy, Climate Change Adaptation,
Minerals and Waste Core Strategy and the Health and
Wellbeing Strategy.

The strategy helpsinformthe prioritisation of local
needs and provides the link between the evidence
base and development of policy.

It explains the actions that will be taken to improve
air quality across the county using the powers
available. It also sets out howwe will encourage
andwork collaborativelyacross councilservices,
schools, the business community, local communities
and individuals to take action to improve air quality
inWiltshirebyimplementingthis strategyandthe
Wiltshire Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP).

TheWiltshire AQAPis specificto thetowns and city
where an AQMA has been declared. The strategy does
notsetoutreplicate these actions but seeks to provide
thelink betweenthewider strategies of the council
andtheevidencebasenecessaryforbringingabout

Wiltshire that are influenced by air quality.

The council will provide strategic leadership
and supportactionatalocallevel. The strategy
contributes totheachievementofWiltshire
Council’s Business

Plan by contributingtothe protectionofthose
who are most vulnerable and boosting the local
economy by making Wiltshire an attractive place to
visit,work and live. It also serves to bring
communities together to enablethemtosolve
problems locally and participate in decisions that
affect them, so ensuring everyone lives in a high
quality environment.

wider improvements in health and inequalities Ii_-glage 123



The strategy’s priorities are evidence led and have been
shaped by the local health priorities, national and EU
legislation and key government documents.

The National Institute for Health and Care Excellence
(NICE) published Air Pollution: outdoor air quality and
health ((QS181) in February 2019 identifies four
quality standards in relation to air quality, which are:

1. Local authorities identify in the Local Plan, local
transport plan and other key strategies how they
will address air pollution, including enabling
zero- and low-emission travel and developing
buildings and spaces to reduce exposure to air
pollution.

2. Local planning authorities assess proposals to
minimise and mitigate road-traffic related air
pollution in planning applications for major
developments.

3. Public sector organisations reduce emissions
from their vehicle fleets to address air pollution.

4. Children, young people and adults with chronic
respiratory or cardiovascular conditions are given
advice at routine health appointments on what to
do when outdoor air quality is poor.

In addition, Public Health England published a
report entitled “Review of interventions to improve
outdoor air quality and public health” in March
2019 which supports interventions at both national
and local levels to reduce air pollution, and
identified 5 areas where action is needed:

e Vehicles and fuels
e Spatial planning

e Industry

e Agriculture

e Behavioural change

Air pollution from industrial sources has a potential

impact of the LAQM regime. An additional system
of Integrated Pollution Prevention Control
introduces specific controls for a range of the
most polluting industries. This system is
regulated by the Environment Agency and Local
Authorities depending on the type and scale of
the industry. Permit conditions are based on the
use of Best Available Techniques (BAT).

Page 124



Section 4: Strategic targets

Wiltshire Coudis committed toworkingtowards the
achievement of local air quality objectives where
exceedances have beenidentified and to reducing air
pollution.

Thereareseveralformalframeworkswhichsettargets
forimprovingair quality. Theseare shaped by the
WorldHealthOrganisation(WHO) guidelines forair
quality. This chapterseekstobringsomeclarityto
these and details our strategic targets.

European Directive on Air Quality

EU limit values are legally binding parameters

that must not be exceeded. Limit values are set
forindividual pollutantsandaremadeupof a
concentrationvalue, an averaging time over whichitis
to be measured, the number of exceedances allowed
per year, if any, and a date by which it must be
achieved.Some pollutants have morethanonelimit
value covering differentendpoints or averaging times.

These limit values are targets to be achieved by
national governments and data is gathered and
reportedannuallytothe EUby DEFRA. The UK action
plan for nitrogen dioxide for tackling exceedances of
theEUobjectivewaspublishinJanuary2016andthe
Wiltshire action plan measures are includedin the plan
for the Southwestarea.

Local air qualitymanagement

The Environment Act 1995 places responsibilities on
local councils to monitor seven air pollutants. Two of

these have proved particularly challenging; nitrogen
dioxide (NO,) and fine particulates (PM10).

Recent Government action plans have blurred

the boundaries between national and local
responsibilities, placing greater emphasis on
local councils to develop innovative solutions to

improve air quality.

Air Quality Objective

Pollutant

Concentration

Measured as

Nitrogen dioxide

200 pg/m3 not to be exceeded
more than 18 times a year

1 hour mean

40 ug/m3

Annual mean

Particulate Matter (PM10)
(gravimetric)

50 ug/m3, not to be exceeded
more than 35 times ayear

24 hour mean

A full list of national and local objectives is contained in Appendix 2.

Public Health Outcomes Framework

Public Health and Protection work closely with
respect to Air quality. TheaimofthePublicHealth
Outcomes Framework (PHOF)istoimproveand
protectthenation’s health and wellbeing, and
improve the health of the poorest fastest.

The framework details four domains for health

improvementwitharangeofindicators. The Healﬁjage 125



Protectiondomainincludes Air Quality as anindicator.

Levels of PM2.5 are monitored using the Automatic
Urban and Rural Network (AURN) and modelled
background datais publishedona 1km x 1km grid
square basis by DEFRA. We also have two Osiris
monitors that are deployed as needs are identified
which, are capable of providing indicative
monitoring of PM2.5.

Page 126



Objectives
Our objectives are:

To meet the annual average and hourly mean
LAQM objective and EU limit for nitrogen
dioxide.

To meet the annual average and 24 hour
mean LAQM objectives and EU limits for Fine
Particulates (PM10).

Achieving these targets will result in:

reduced use of privatecars

better informed strategic planning
increased use of publictransport
more people being active

provision of increased infrastructure for cycling
and walking

increase use of alternatives to fossils fuels
increased active travel

fewer people dying from respiratory and
cardiovascular disease and cancer

improve the wellbeing of those who suffer from
respiratory and cardiovascular disease

contribute to climate changereduction
more sustainable development

a reduction in healthinequalities

The success of the strategy will be measured against
trendsinourmonitoringdata, (both real-timeand
diffusiontubes) and revocation of existing air quality
management areas. Progress will be monitored and
reported via in theAnnualSatusReport, which

the council submits to DEFRA eachyearandvia
theHealth & Wellbeing Board.

Page 127



Section5: Deliveringgood air quality —-responsibilities

Tackling air pollution is a complex national
challenge. The sources of pollution are intimately
boundupinourdaytodaylives and our use of
private vehicles.Nooneindividual service,
group or partner has the ability to bring about
improvementsinairqualityandtherefore the

following points have beenidentified as key
priorities forachievingthe objectives of this strategy.

Ourapproachisacountywideone,andis based
upon maintaining and preventing the deterioration
of air quality across the county. Itdoes notfocus
solelyonthoseareaswhere AQMAs have already
been declared or where levels of pollutants are
elevated. Prevention not only requires commitment
from the Council but from communities and
individuals.

Action is required at the following levels:

National and EU:

The Government has submitted national air quality
actionplanstotheEUdetailinghowtheypropose

to meet the EU limit values for nitrogen dioxide and
small particulates. This includes proposals for new

CleanAirZones in areas with exceedences of EU

IimitIeveIs.TheLocalAuthorityAirQuaIity/Fgg_g'é 128

Plans are included in the regional plans which
form partofthis. The EU have also setemission
standards forvehicles. These standards need to
be metin

the real world as well as under laboratory test
conditions if meaningful improvementsinair
quality are to be achieved.

Wiltshire Council

We will continue to work collaboratively
with, sustainable transport, strategic
planning, development control and economic
development teams to ensure that air quality
is properly consideredandincorporatedinto
decision making



to maintain andimprove the builtenvironment
andinfrastructure. This will also support the
council’s aim to meetits climate change objectives.

We will continue to monitor and report on air
quality in accordance with the requirements of Local
Air Quality Managementregime.

We will continue to work collaboratively with the
area boards and community air quality action plan
groups which were developed as part of the first air
quality strategy. Improvementstoairqualityata
local level can only be secured with the cooperation
and support of local communities.

Through provision of infrastructure and alternative
travel choicesindividuals can choose an alternative
travel modetothe private motorvehicle. This can
be beneficial to the individual’s health as well as the
environment.

Following on from the first air quality strategy it
was identified that therewas a need for the
provision of timely and accurate air quality data
andinformation. As aresulta dedicated air quality
website was commissioned. We shall seek to
maintain and develop this resource.

Page 129



Section 6: Strategic priorities and actions.

The strategic objectives draw upon and build on
the themes developed in the Air Quality Action Plan
for Wiltshire. Theyapplyacross thewhole county
and seek to address increasing concern about
the public health effects of exposure to vehicle
fumes.

Strategic priority 1: Secure air quality
objectives in the eight Air Quality
Management Areas (AQMA)

The poorest areas of air quality have been identified
and Wiltshire Council is committed to working
with communities, partneragencies and other
servicesto securethe necessaryimprovements
withinthe Local Air Quality Management
Framework.

What we will do:

The tools by which this will be achieved are
contained in the Air Quality Action Plan for
Wiltshire,whichincludeslocal CommunityAir
Quality ActionPlans. Progress withthe Action
Plan will be reported in the Annual Status Report
whichis submitted to DEFRAinJuneeachyear
and will be published on the coundil’s air quality
website.

Continue to facilitate joint working with Area
Boards to develop local action plans and
initiatives at community level.

Require air quality impact assessments for
planningapplicationsinrespect of standby
generator farms used to supplement demand
on the National Grid require mitigation where
appropriate to minimise the impact of exhaust
fumes.Proposalswithinan AQMA orthatmay
impactonanAQMA mayberecommended for
refusal.

Require new developmenttoadheretothe
principles, objectives and spirit of this strategy
and torequire adherenceto core policy 55

quality across the county

Preventing the deterioration of air quality in the
first placeis the most cost effective strategy to
ensure a vibrantlocaleconomy,andthat
Wiltshireisaplace where people wish to live,
work and visit.

What will we do:

Workin partnershipwith Spatial Planningand
Development Control to ensure air quality
continues to beintegrated into the planning
system. To facilitate this we will work toward
the formaladoptionofSupplementary
Planning Document on air quality.
We will require air quality impact assessments of
new residential and commercial developmentin
pursuance of core policy 55 and the objectives of
this strategy.

We will work with Spatial Planning on refreshing
core policy 55 and to promote greater
consistency between policies on air quality,
sustainable development, transportand climate
change.

We will work with Development Control and
Developerstoensuredevelopmentdoes not
lead to future air quality problems. This may be
through design and layout or through financial
contributions to specific projects that promote
better air quality.

Wewant to ensure thatnew development helps
reducetheneedtotravel particularly by private
car,and wilencourage the sustainable, safe and
efficient movement of people and goods
within Wiltshire through measures suchas the
creation of cycle ways, green travel plans and
thatotherwise promote and enhanceindividuals’
ability to use alternatives tothe private motor
car.

Weare committed to maintainingairquality
monitoring across the county to address local
concerns where they arise and to provide that

Strategic priority 2: Maintaining goodRéige 13Qnformation on a public platform



We will work with Transport Planners and ensure
thatairqualityisaconsiderationintransport
strategies and plans.

We will work with teams engaged in
economic developmentand regeneration to
facilitate the Government’s ambitionofalow
carbon,low emission economy, to ensure
improvements are ongoing and sustainable,
support future development and decouple local
growth from air pollution and carbon
emissions.

Ensure air quality continues to be embedded into
the thinking and decision process of the council.

We will support and encourage local
communities tofacilitate alternatives to the
private car for local journeys

Wewill encourage local communities to work
with schools and businesses to promote the use
of travel plans

Through the planning process we will require
electric vehicle charging points on new
residential and commercial developments

Page 131



Strategic priority 3: Wiltshire Council’s
ownh actions

The council recognises thatinimproving air quality,
it has its own role to play in reducing emissions and
also has the ability toinfluence policies that will
contribute to an improvement in air quality.

We will engage with taxilicensing teamto
explore how we can encourage promotion of
low emissionvehicles for private hire and taxi
use.

Build onand supportwiderwork of the council
with regard to renewable energy, district heating
systems and climateadaptation.

Support the promotion of sustainable travel and
active travel towork by staff, contractorand
partners.

Wewillworkin partnershipwith the council’s

fleet management team to explore how the
council can promote and embrace use of low

emissionvehiclesinitsownbusiness andreduce
business mileage.

We will work with the passenger transport teams
to promote sustainable public transport and
transport to schools.

We willencouragelowcarbon, low pollution
considerations to beincluded in procurement.

Work with bus companies and other partners
to support bids to the Office for Low Emission
Vehicles (OLEV)tosecureimprovementsto

emissions from public transport.

Explore the development of aLow Emissions
Strategyinpartnershipwiththe EcoBoard.

Seek to work with Wiltshire Council partner
organisations to reduce their emissions and
carbon footprint.

Work with transport planners and other partners
to seek funding for projects toimprove air

quality. Page 132

Work with the school travel adviser to
promote andfacilitatesustainableand
activetravelto school by school children
and parents.

Pilotand supportinitiativeand projectsinand
aroundnewdevelopmenttofacilitate
sustainable and activetravel,suchas ‘Home
Run’and ‘Beat the Street through S106
funding.

Secure funding through S106 contributions
for infrastructure and other envionmend

impovements such as tree paning that will contribute
towards improving air quality.



Investigate the introduction of no idling
zones particularly around schools

Strategic priority 4: Communication and
information dissemination

Good communication and information
dissemination are key to shaping policy and plans,
keeping communities informed, and assisting
those professionals tasked with planning new
development.

Wewill provide tailored, clear, accurate and
consistent messages aboutthe benefits of good
air quality, utilising the Wiltshire air quality
websiteasaplatformtoinformandeducate.

Wewill identify peoplewho are atrisk from poor
air quality and promote atext alertsystem.

A text alert system will be embedded into other
services offered by the council which cater for ‘at
risk’ groups such as Warm and Safe.

We will establish an officer steering group for air
quality with representatives from services across
the council.

We will work with communities where air quality
is identified as a local priority in the Community
Areajoint Strategic Assessment.

Advise local groups on siting and analysis of NO2
monitoring tubes (see Appendix 3).

We will support events such as Clean Air Day and
work to engage with local communities to raise
awareness of measures they and individuals can
take to reduce air pollution in their towns &
villages.

Page 133



Section 7: Implementation

Implementation, development and evaluation of
the Air Quality Strategy will be driven by Health
& Wellbeing Board. The group includes
members from Wiltshire Council, the
Environment Agency, PHE, NHS Wiltshire CCG
and key partners. We build on existing work to
implement change through the community air
quality working groups, and a new officer steering
group.

Section 8: Governance

This strategy is governed by the Health & Wellbeing
Board. A progress report will be submitted to the
group annually on the progress of the Air Quality
Strategy.

Not all actions will be directly contained within
the air quality strategy. Progress on the Air Quality
Action Plan will be reported to Defraand local

air quality action plans will be reported on to the
Area Boards and Defra. This strategy forms an
overarching policy document that seeks to maintain
and improve air quality across the county. Further
actions are contained in the Air Quality Action
Plan and Community Action Plans. These will
be published on the Wiltshire Air Quality web page
and reported on to Defra and the relevant area
board.

Section 9: References and resources

1. Air Quality Plan for Nitrogen Dioxide in UK
(2017) DEFRA

2. Clean Air Strategy (2019) DEFRA

3. Review of Interventions to improve outdoor

air quality and Public Health

4. Air Pollution: Outdoor air quality and health
(2019) NICE Page 134
| 16



http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/air-quality-plan-for-nitrogen-dioxide-no2-in-uk-2017
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/air-quality-plan-for-nitrogen-dioxide-no2-in-uk-2017
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/clean-air-strategy-2019
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/784055/Review_of_interventions_to_improve_air_quality.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/784055/Review_of_interventions_to_improve_air_quality.pdf
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/qs181
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/qs181

© N O W

Public Health Outcomes Framework
Wiltshire Air Quality Website

Wiltshire Know & Respond Text Alert Service
Defra guidance on siting of diffusion tubes

Page 135


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework
http://www.wiltshireairquality.org.uk/
http://www.wiltshireairquality.org.uk/know-and-respond/
https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/assets/documents/reports/cat05/0802141004_NO2_WG_PracticalGuidance_Issue1a.pdf

Appendix 1: First Wiltshire Air Quality Strategy achievements

Summary of Measures implemented from Air Quality Strategy 2011

2015

Smarter travel initiatives to encourage a shift to greener modes of transport.

Funding and supporting car clubs.

Smoothing traffic.

Development of electric vehicleinfrastructure.

Bus emissions programme, so thatolder buses have beenfitted with particulate traps
and diesel-electric hybrid buses are introduced as quickly as possible.

Publication of air quality actionplan.

Inclusion of core policy 55 in the Wiltshire Core Strategy.

Draft Air Quality Supplementary Planning Document.

Wiltshire Air Quality website.

Establishment of community air quality action plan groups in areas with AQMAs.

Text alert system for poor air quality: Know and Respond.

Beat the Street - Public Health joint project with local AQ groups.

Electric charging points on public car parks and train stations.

‘ Air quality objective

‘ Date to be

Pollutant
‘ Concentration Measured as ‘ achieved by
Benzene 16.25pug/m3 Running annual mean|31.12.2003
5.00ug/m3 Running annual mean|31.12.2010
1,3-Butadiene 2.25pg/m3 Running annual mean|31.12.2003
Carbon monoxide 10.0mg/m3 Running 8 hour mean | 31.12.2003
Lead 0.5ug/m3 Annual mean 31.12.2004
0.25pg/m3 Annual mean 31.12.2008
Nitrogen dioxide 200pg/m3 nottobeexceededmore | 1 hour mean 31.12.2005
than 18 times a year
40ug/m3 Annual mean 31.12.2005

Page 136



Particles (PM10) 50pg/m3, nottobeexceededmore | 24 hour mean 31.12.2004

(gravimetric) than 35 times a year
40pg/m3 Annual mean 31.12.2004
Sulphur dioxide 350pg/m3, nottobeexceededmore | 1 hour mean 31.12.2004

than 24 times a year

than 3 times a year

125pug/m3, nottobeexceededmore | 24 hour mean 31.12.2004

than 35 times a year

266pg/m3, nottobeexceededmore | 15 minute mean 31.12.2005

Appendix 3

NO2 monitoring using Diffusion Tubes

Diffusion tubes are inexpensive and many can be installed over a geographical area. The low
cost per tube permits sampling at a number of points in the area of interest; which is useful
in highlighting “hotspots” of high concentrations, such as alongside major roads. They are
less useful for monitoring around point sources or near to industrial locations where greater
temporal resolution is required for particular objectives. They are useful both for annual
monitoring as well as short term monitoring projects. They can be placed in many different
locations, though are typically placed on building facades in heavily trafficked areas, and in
urban background locations.

Diffusion tubes take samples over an approximately 1 month period. As such they are useful
for assessing the annual objective of 40ug/m3, but cannot be used to assess the number of
hours greater than 200ug/m3. As they are not the reference method, and passive diffusion
typically results in a low accuracy, it is necessary to bias correct the results based upon local
or national collocation studies with chemiluminescent analysers. It is also necessary to
calculate the data capture, and if this is less than 75%, the results should be annualised.

The site should be open to the sky, with no overhanging vegetation or buildings. Ideally,
samplers would be placed at breathing height, but in order to reduce theft of tubes, it is
recommended that tubes are placed at a height of 2-4 m. It is important to place diffusion
tubes where there is free circulation of air around the tube, but the opposite extreme should
also be avoided, i.e. areas of higher than usual turbulence. For this reason, the tube should
not be located on the corner of a building. Care should be taken to avoid any very localised
sources, sinks of NO2, or disturbances to the airflow. For example, tubes should be
mounted greater than 10m from the following:

e Heater flues (particularly low level balanced flues);

e Bushes or trees overhanging or surrounding the tube location;

Page 137



e Air conditioning outlets;
e Extractor vents; or

e Underground ventilation shafts.

More detailed guidance on the siting of diffusion tubes is given in section 3 of the report
produced for Defra in February 2008 entitled “Diffusion Tubes for Ambient NO2
Monitoring: Practical Guidance”

https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/assets/documents/reports/cat05/0802141004_NO2_WG_PracticalGuidance_Issuela.pdf

Page 138


https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/assets/documents/reports/cat05/0802141004_NO2_WG_PracticalGuidance_Issue1a.pdf

Local actions to improve air quality

Traffic controls to

Large, healthy trees
smooth traffic flow

have the greatest per Trees trap small
Trees shade buildings reducing the tree effects at particulate matter and reduce emissions
need for air conditioning which pollution removal from the air

reduces fossil fuel consumption Planting Living
green screens

N Segregated cycle and
walk ways/greater
feeling of safety

jabl
Q

)

N Wider pavements and
cycle paths linking
Housing & town centres

Improved
neighbourhood
air quality

|_\
% Tree/hedge planting
people

N Planting Living green screens

N Implementing no-idling
zones in areas with
'vulnerable hotspots'
such as schools and

INE OFF hospitals

g Payto ride bikes

%
e

. Low emission buses/vehicles

Q@ A s

Let’s keep  \Wiltshire Council

it I ow ~—=————=_ Where everybody matters

Electric vehicles and
charging points



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

23 May 2019

Subject: Update on MASH self neglect guidance and Wiltshire Multi-
Agency Hoarding Protocol

Executive Summary

l. To inform the Health and Wellbeing Board of the introduction of
guidance on self neglect and provide feedback on the use of the
multi-agency hoarding protocol.

Proposal(s)

It is recommended that the Board:
l. Notes the approach taken on self neglect and hoarding.

Reason for Proposal

I. Toimprove how the relevant agencies deal with, and work together on
self neglect and hoarding issues.

Tracy Daszkiewicz
Director of Public Health
Wiltshire Council

Page 141



Wiltshire Council

Health and Wellbeing Board

23 May 2019

Subject: Wiltshire Self Neglect Guidance and Wiltshire Multi Agency
Hoarding Protocol

Purpose of Report

1.

To inform the Board of the guidance published by the Wiltshire
Safeguarding Adults Board in relation to self-neglect and to update on the
use of the multi-agency hoarding protocol.

Background

2.

The term ‘self-neglect’ includes a wide range of behaviour, neglecting to
care for one’s personal hygiene, health or surroundings, and includes
behaviour such as hoarding (Care Act 2014).

Self-neglect featured in a Safeguarding Adult Review conducted by the
Wiltshire Safeguarding Adult Board (WSAB) and the Multi-Agency
Guidance on Self Neglect was drawn up and published in 2018 as a
result.

The document includes information, best practice guidelines and a risk
assessment tool. It provides clear guidance for everyone in Wiltshire
whose role brings them into contact with people who self-neglect or could
be at risk of self-neglecting. It supports people to

define different types of self-neglect

feel confident in identifying self-neglect

know what they can do to support people who self-neglect
know their responsibilities when working with someone who
self-neglects

Although hoarding is a feature of self-neglect, the decision was taken to
produce a sperate protocol specific to hoarding. The Health and Wellbeing
Board considered the hoarding protocol at its meeting in July last year.
Since its introduction the protocol has been used by a number of external
organisations and internal services.

Main Considerations

6.

There has been a range of different activities to raise awareness of self-
neglect and hoarding and the new guidance. WSAB held a county-wide
learning event about self-neglect which include staff from a broad range of
services and partners.

Page 142



7. Within Wiltshire Council, awareness sessions have been organised to
introduce the guidance and protocol and support their implementation.

8. Within Wiltshire Adult Care Service, each team has a Self-Neglect Lead
and the Adult MASH are facilitating sessions for these Leads to support
the embedding of best practice.

9. The new tools have been highlighted in induction and training and are
available on GROW (the council’s internal training resource). Managers
and staff are reporting improved awareness. Some teams have
experience of using the tools within case work and safeguarding referrals
have been received where the Hoarding Protocol has been referred to and
the clutter rating images within the protocol used. Last year self-neglect
and hoarding concerns made up 5% of the total safeguarding enquiries
that Adult MASH undertook.

10. Safe & Well Advisors in Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service
complete a Practitioner’'s Hoarding Assessment Form whenever they visit
a property and identify hoarding which is then scanned and emailed to
Adult Care via the Advice & Contact Team at the Council.

Next Steps

11. The Hoarding Protocol has been reviewed following its introduction and
has been found to be a useful resource providing a person-centred
approach to those with hoarding issues. No additions or amendments
have been suggested by any of the agencies which have used it to date.
The protocol remains hosted on the Wiltshire Adult Safeguarding Board
website with the appendices as separate documents so they can be
downloaded and used without the need to download the entire document.

12. Both sets of guidance can be found here:

http://www.wiltshiresab.org.uk/professionals/

Authors: Emma Townsend and John Carter

Tracy Daszkiewicz
Director of Public Health
Wiltshire Council

Page 143


http://www.wiltshiresab.org.uk/professionals/

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	7 Better Care Plan
	20190523 BCP Appendix 1
	20190523 BCP Appendix 2
	20190523 BCP Appendix 3

	8 Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat
	9 Multi-Agency Approach to Preventing and Tackling Serious Violence
	10 Learning Disability Update
	11 Air Quality Update
	Air Quality Strategy Proof 01.05.19
	D19024-air-quality-infographic4

	12 Self-Neglect and Hoarding

